IN THE CIRCUIT COURT OF THE SIXTH JUDICIAL CIRCUIT
OF THE STATE OF FLORIDA IN AND FOR PASCO COUNTY
2014CFO000216CFAXES-1
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. STATE’ S MOTION IN LIMINE TO
EXCLUDE THE TESTIMONY OF VIVIAN REEVES REGARDING
THE DEFENDANT’S CHARACTER AND TO REQUIRE A PROOFER OF
DEFENDANT’ S CHARACTER EVIDENCE OUTSIDE THE PRESENCE OF THE JURY
for the. Sixth

COMES NOW, Bernie McCabe, State Attorney,
Judicial Circuit in and for Pasco County, Florida, by and
through  the undersigned Assistant State  Attorney hereby

this Honorable Court to enter an order
Reeves regarding the

respectfully requests
the testimony of Vivian

excluding »
Defendant’s character and:to require the defense to proffer any
evidence of the Defendant’s character outside the presence of

the jury and as good cause would show

State’s Position

regarding the

of Vivian Reeves
section

testimony

1. The previous
Defendant’s character is inadmissible under
90-.404 (1) (a) and ° should be excluded under section

90.405(1).

2. The Defendant is only allowed to proffer his good character
or traits of his character where such evidence has
reference to a trait involved in the offense charged

3. The only method of proving admissible character or traits
of character is by testimony about his reputation.

Factual Basis

After an immunity

The Defendant is charged with 2° Murder
Judge Barthle degied the Defendant’s immunity request

hearing,



The State anticipates the Defendant will continue to maintain he
dcted in self-defense and that killing of Chad Oulson was
justifiable. » '

Vivian Reeves testified during the Defendant’s immunity
hearing to her personal opinions as to the Defendant’s character
and to specific incidences of conduct. See, Exhibit #1,
attached. (Immunity hearing transcript, Volume 6, pages 662-763.

The below-identified summary of testimony is general character
trait evidence of the Defendant that is either a pertinent or
non-pertinent trait of second degree murder and was presented in
the form of inadmissible opinion evidence or as . specific
incidences of conduct. (All page numbers are from Exhibit #1,
attached.)

1. She testified that when Jennifer was a baby the Defendant
was a wonderful father and husband.  Pg. 666, Ln 11-25
through Pg. 669, Ln 1-17.

2. She testified that when the Defendant came home from work
he. was a caring person and would do anything for his
children. Pg. 670, Ln. 1-6.

3. She agreed with defense counsel’s statement that the
Defendant was a peaceful person at home. Pg. 670, Ln. 7-8.

4. She testified that the Defendant never lost his temper
towards her or his daughter, Jennifer. Pg. 670, Ln. 12-13.

5. She testified that the Defendant was never violent towards
her. Pg. 670, Ln. 14-15.

6. She testified that when Jennifer was a child he never
showed any characteristics of violence, aggression or
impatience. Pg. 670, Ln. 16-22.

7. She testified that when the Defendant was impatience, he
never showed any aggression or violence towards her. Pg.
670, Ln. 25 through Pg. 671, Ln 1-2. '

8. She testified that after her son, Matt was born the
Defendant was a ©peaceful man at home, never showed
aggression. Pg. 671, Ln. 12-15 through Pg. 672, Ln. 1-5.



9. She testified that as the children were growing up

the

Defendant was a loving, caring, peaceful person who showed

no signs of aggression. Pg. 672, Ln. 7-23.

10. She testified that as long as she has been married to
the Defendant his character as being caring, peacefulness,

responsible, for always doing the right thing did not
change. Pg. 673, Ln. 3-20..
11. She testified that after the Defendant retired the

Defendant’s character as being caring, peacefulness,
responsible, conscientious, non-aggressive person did not

change. Pg., 688 Ln 2-25 through Pg. 689, Ln. 1-6.

‘Argument

General o

_ An accused in a criminal <case 1is permitted to offer
evidence of pertinent or relevant personal character trait(s)

that relates to a pertinent trait of the charged crime.

“The general rule in Florida is that a

criminal defendant 1is allowed to introduce

evidence of his good character and

reputation where such evidence has reference

to a trait involved in the offense with

which he 1is charged. Campos v. State, 366

So.2d 782, 784 (Fla. 3d DCA 1978); Seabrook
v. State, 348 So.2d 663, 664 (Fla. 2d DCA

1977). A defendant's lack of propensity

toward violence 1is clearly relevant to the

trait of violence inherent in a charge of

attempted murder. Campos, 366 So.2d at 784;

Seabrook, 348 So.2d at 064. Moreover,

section 90.404 (1) (a), Florida Statutes
(2002), specifically allows the accused to
offer evidence of a pertinent trait of his

character. Pino v. Koelber, 389 So.2d 1191,

1193 (Fla. 2d DCA 1980).” Hoffman v. State,

953 So.2d 643, 645 (Fla. 3"¢ DCA 2007)

The admissibility of the Defendant’s character traits
governed by Rule 90.404 (1) ¢(a).

is



Rule 90.404 states in part:

§90.404 CharactgrAevidence; when admissible

(1) Character evidence generally - Evidence
of .a person’s character or a trait of
character is inadmissible to prove action in
conformity with it. on a particular occasion,
except:

(a) Character of accused. — Evidence of a
pertinent train of character offered by an
accused, or by the prosecution to rebut the
trait.

Pertinent traits of the crime charged

The character traits involved in the offense of 2° Murder
are non-violence and peacefulness. 1Id. at 645-46.

“An accused 1s entitled to introduce evidence
of his good character and reputation in the
community, where that evidence refers to
traits involved in the offense with which the
defendant is charged. Norman v. State, 156
So.2d 186 (Fla. 3d DCA 1963). Garcia's
‘testimony would have been that appellant
enjoyed the reputation in the community for
non-violence. One's lack of propensity toward
violence 1s certainly relevant to the trail
of violence 1inherent 1in a second degree
‘murder charge. Norman. v. State, supra, and
see Seabrook v. State, 348 So.2d 663 (Fla. 2d
DCA 1977).” Campus v. State, 366 5o0.2d at
784.

Method of proving character

Evidence of general character 1is not admissible;
it must relate to a particular pertinent trait of the
charged crime. Hoffman, 953 So.2d at 644.

If the character trait is not relevant to a pertinent trait
involved in the crime charged is not admissible under section
90.404 (1) (a). Russ v. State, 934 So.2d 527, 531-32 (Fla. 3™
DCA 2006) (Trial court did not abuse its discretion in




prosecution for lewd and lascivious exhibition on a child and
sexual - battery on person less than twelve vyears of age by
refusing to permit defendant to c¢all character witnesses to
testify as to his reputation in the community for non-violence
and respect toward females; no argument was made defendant had
acted violently and the defendant’s reputation for
respectfulness toward women had no' bearing on whether he
committed the offenses.).

“Because the victim’s character was not an
essential element of the crime or defense at
bar, proof of same was required to be made
by reputation evidence. See Fhrhardt at §
405.3. Reputation- evidence is evidence of a
person’s character within the community.
Such evidence does not include specific acts
or opinion testimony. Id. at § 405.1. In the
case at bar, the proffered testimony of the
two witnesses divulges appellant’s attempt
to introduce specific act testimony-—not
reputation evidence. Therefore, such
evidence was inadmissible under section
90.405. See, e.g., Taylor wv. State, 513
So.2d 1371, 1372. (Fla. 2d DCA 1987); see
also Perrin v. Anderson, 784 F.2d 1040 (10th
'Cir.1986).” Dupree v. State, 615 S0.2d 713,
722 (Fla. 1°° DCA 1993)

The accused may not offer character trait evidence in the
form of opinion evidence. Rigterink v. State, 66 So0.3d 866, 895
(Fla. 2011) ( Additionally, Farmer presented his testimony with
regard to Mullins’ allegedly violent nature in terms of his own
opinion and generalized personal experiences, which 1is not a
proper method to establish character or reputation evidence in
Florida. See, e.g., Wyatt v. State, 578 So.2d 811, 813 (Fla. 3d
DCA 1991) {(holding that section 90.405, Florida Statutes,
“specifically limits the introduction of character evidence to
reputation ... [and] does not permit evidence of character to be .
made by opinion” (citations omitted)). Wyatt v. State, 578 So.2d
811, 813 (Fla. 3% 1991) (Additionally, section 90.405, Florida
Statutes (1987), specifically 1limits the introduction of
character evidence to reputation or specific 1instances of
conduct. Wrobel v. State, 410 So.2d 950 (Fla. 5th DCA), rev.
denied, 419 So.2d 1201 (Fla.1982). This statute does not permit
evidence of character to be made by opinion. -See Alvarado v.
State, 521 So.2d 180 (Fla. 3d DCA 1988))




‘ Specific incidences of behavior are not admissible to prove
a character trait under Rule 90.404(1) (a). Buford v. State, 403
So.2d 943, 949 (Fla. 1981) (Defendant in murder case could prove
his nonviolence by evidence of his general reputation in the
community; not by specific instances of nonviolence.) Love v.
State, 971 So.2d 280, 285-86 (Fla. 4™ DCA 2008) (Even where
character evidence is proper, admissible evidence is “limited to
the testimony witnesses who are aware of the wvictim’s *288
reputation for the pertinent character trait.” Ehrhardt, § 404.6
(Emphasis added); § 90.405, Fla. Stat. (2006); see Dupree, 615
So.2d at 721. A litigant may not prove a character trait by
offering evidence about instances of conduct that demonstrate
the trait.) '

The accused my only offer character trait evidence in the
form of “reputation” testimony. Rule 90.405(1l) Wrobel v. State,
410 So.2d 950, 950-1 (Fla. 5" DcA 1982) (In Florida, the methods
of presenting character evidence is limited to testimony of
reputation. Maloy v. State, 52 Fla. 101, 41 So. 791 (1906))

Rule 90.405 states in part:
§90.405 Methods of proving character

(1) Reputation - When evidence of the
character of a person or of a trait of that
person’s character is admissible, proof may

"be made by testimony about that person’s
reputation.

“Under Florida’s new evidence code, evidence
of a person’s character or a trait of his
character 1is inadmissible to prove that he
acted in conformity with it on a particular

occasion except  under certain limited
circumstances. S 90.404 (1) . Fla.Stat.
(1981) . One ~ exception ©permits, in a

criminal case, the admission of evidence of
a pertinent character trait of the accused
offered by him, or by the prosecution to
rebut the trait. § 90.404(1). Fla.Stat.
(1981). However, except when character or a
trait of a character is an essential element
of the case, proof or a person’s character
should be made through his testimony about
his reputation. §90.405, Fla.Stat. (1981)”



Dixon v. State, 426 So.2d 1258, 1259 (Fla.
27 pCA 1983) '

Foundation for the admissibility of reputation evidence

Before reputation evidence regarding a relevant
trait of the accused 1is admitted, a proper predicate
established. Rigterink, 66 So0.3d at 895-95

character
must the

The Florida Supreme ihterpreted section 90.405(1), Florida

Statutes, to require the following predicate
admissibility of reputation testimony:

“Section 90.405 governs the type of evidence
that may be used. to prove reputation. As a
predicate to the introduction of such
evidence, a foundation must be *895 laid to
prove that /the witness testifying as to
reputation is aware of the person’s general
reputation for truthfulness in the
community. Charles W. Ehrhardt, Florida
Evidence § 405.1 (1995 ed). Essentially, it
must be established that the community from
which the reputation testimony is drawn is
sufficiently broad to provide the witness
with adequate knowledge to give a reliable
assessment. This assessment must be based on
more than "“mere personal opinion, fleeting
encounters, or rumor.” Rogers v. State, 511
So.2d 526, 530 (Fla.l1987), cert. denied, 484
U.s. 1020, 108 sS.Ct. 733, 98 L.Ed.2d 681
(1988). Further, reputation evidence “must
be based on discussions among a broad group
of people so that it accurately reflects the
person’s character, rather than the biased

opinions or comments of ... a narrow segment
of the community.” Ehrhardt, supra, § 405.1
at 197 (footnote omitted). Larzelere V.

State, 676 So.2d 394, 399-400 (Fla.1996).”
Rigterink, 66 So.3d at 894-95

Admissibility of hearsay to establish reputation

Assuming relevancy and satisfaction of the

for the

predicate

fequirements, hearsay testimony is. admissible to establish one’s



reputation within his or her community. Section 90.803(21),
Florida Statutes (2005).

Conclusion

\The above-identified testimony is not admissible énd should
be excluded under section 90.405(1), Florida Evidence Code.

WHEREFORE, the State of Florida respectfully requests the
Court to enter its Order excluding the testimony of Vivian
Reeves as 1t relates to the Defendant’s character and to
instruct the attorney for the Defendant, and any witnesses, not
to mention or refer, or interrogate concerning, or attempt to
convey to the jury in any manner either direct or indirect, any
of the above mentioned facts without first obtaining permission
of the Court outside the presence and hearing of the jury.

CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE

I HEREBY CERTIFY that a copy of the foregoing State’s
Motion in Limine to Exclude the Testimony of Vivian Reeves
Regarding the Defendant’s Character and to Require a Proofer of
Defendant’s Character Evidence outside the Presence of the Jury
was furnished to Richard Escobar, Esqg., Attorney Zfor the

Defendant, at 2917 West Kennedy Blvd., Suite 100, Fi?ﬂ?giL'FL
/

33609-3163, by U.S. Mail or Personal Service this
day of June, 2020. : |4

BERNIE McCABE, State Attorney
Sixth Judicial Circuit of Florida

Glenn#4,. Martin, Jr.
Assigfant State Attorney
Bayp/No. 435988
P~. 0. Box 5028
Clearwater, FL 33758

< (727)y464-6221
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J
free to go at this time and you are subject to

recall.
THE WITNESS: Thank you. Have a good day.
THE COURT: You, toé.
(Witness excused.)
THE COURT: Who‘s'next?
MR. MICHAELS: Defense calls Vivian Reeves.
THE BAILIFF: Step this way, stand right here.
Face the clerk; raise your right hand to be sworn.
(Thereupon, the witness was duly sworn on oath.)
THE BAILIFF: Come have a seaf up here. Adjust
the mic. Speak in a loud and clear Vvoice for the
. Court.

THE COURT: . You may proceed, Counselor.

DIRECT EXAMINATION

BY MR. MICHAELS: |

Q. Good afternoon, Mrs. Reeves. .

A. Hello.

Q. Please state your full name for the court
reporter.

A. Vivian Reeves.

Q. Could yoﬁ spell Vivian, please?

A. V-I-V-I-A-N. ’

Q. And you're Mrs. Curtis Reeves?

A, Yes, sir.

2/22/2017 State of -Florida v. Curtis J. Reeves
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Is that your husband?

Yes.

How long have you beén married?
49 years last October.

What is your Qedding date?
October 28;h.

So this year will be fifty years?
Fifty, yes.

Do you have children?

Yes, two.

And who is oldest?

Jennifer.

How old is she?

Forty-three.

And your youngest?

Matt is 40.

Do you have any grahdchildren?
One.

And what.is her name?

Madison.

How old is she?

She just turned five.

Are you ;etiréd or are you wofking?
I'm retired.

Let's talk a little bit about your employment

2/22/2017

State of Florida v. Curtis J. Reeves
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history.
A.
president

Q.

» © » © ¥

Q.

life with

A,

Q.

A.

Q.

A,

Q.

A.

Q.

What's the last job that you had?
I worked at USAA for the assistant vice

of claims and the executive director of claims.

~How long did you work at USAA?

Thirteen years.

Before that what did you do?

I taught school for a few years.

Where did yoﬁ teach school at?

Lutz Eleméntary.

Let's gef a little background about your early

your husband.

When you married him, was he a police officer?

Yes, he was.

And do you know where he was a police officer,

what department?

Tampa.
And where did you live?

When we first got married, we lived in an

apartment on Branch Avenue, in an old home .

Where did you move after that?

We built -- well, no. We bought property in

Lutz, and we lived.in a house down on the lake that the
people were traveling, and they wanted us to take care of

.~ the property, so we lived in the house.

And how long were you married before your first

2/22/2017

State of Florida v. Curtis J. Reeves
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child came along, Jennifer?

A. Six years.

Q. Where were you living‘ﬁhen Jennifer was born?
A. In our home in Lutz.

Q. Now, when -- let's talk about your family life

and Jennifer as a newborn.

Your husband was a police officer then?

A. Yes.

Q. Were you working?

A, Yes, I was.

Q. When Jennifer comes along, tell me, do you

continue to work?

AL I did.
Q. Who helped take care of Jennifer?
A. In the daytime, when we were at work, my

kept her, and then the second year Curtis's mother
her. |
Q. Now, wh%? Jennifer was a baby, what sort
father was Cuﬁtisf was your husband?
A. He was aAwonderful father.
MR. MARTIN: Excuse me, Your Honor. I'm
to object as far as relevancy.
MR. MICHAELS: Judge, we've started this

hearing talking about how important it was to

sister

kept

of

going

understand who Mr. Reeves is, to understand what his

2/22/2017 State of Florida V. Curtis J. Reeves
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perception was at the time.'

The State objected to anything that happened
aftér that particuiar day, which I still don't agree
with; however, now we're talking about before that
particular day. However, I think we're gettiné some
background information.

I think it's important for the Court to hear
what kind of a father he was, what kind of person he
was, and T think if we get the bigger picture, I
mean, the State -- I know and I appreciate
Mr. Martin's argument that it is a snapshot in time,
but truly, Jgdge, this isn't a snapshot. This is a
movie, if you will. This is a long movie regarding
his entire life to know who he is, and that's what
the law requires, and we have the burden of proving
that he was justified and Mr. Reeves was justified,
so, therefore( welshould be granted some leeway to
have the Court understand exactly who Mr. Reeves is.

THE COURT: The rules allow for an accused to
put forth testimony regarding his chafacter as long
as it pertains to a trait that has something to do
with the crime charged.

Where are you getting at with that line of
questioning?

MR. MICHAELS: I think Mr. Martin's comment in

2/22/2017 State"&f Florida v. Curtist. Reeves
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terms of his opening statement/argument was
something to the effect of -- and I'm sure he'll
correct me if I'm wrong. I apologize if I'm wrong,

but the characterization was essentially that Mr.

Reeves was a former police officer who didn't get

his way, because he's a person that is used to being
in authority, and therefore, he overreacted and
didn't act properly, therefore, wasn't justified.

So this is'felevant to certainly show that that

wasn't the type of character. Essentially the

‘testimony would be that he is a guy who left work at

work.

So if we're saying that he's a man who left the
police*force; with the police force upon retirement,
then, I think.this is relevant to show that that's
the bigger picture and that that is relevant to show
his charactér, in terms of he's not as he's being
characterized by the State in this case.

THE COURT: Any fqrther argument?

MR. MARTIN: Yes, Judge. .

The character evidence that is relevant in an
immunity hearing deals with the elements in which --
that are at issue. It's no different than any other
type of self-defense case.

Judge, there is no leeway for the Defense. The

2/22/2017 State of Florida v. Curtis J. Reeves
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only time there's leeway is in a death penalty case,
and we've heard it over and over. Death is
different from the Courts and we get leeway. This
is not where we're at.

I've provided the Court with the case law that
indicates thét all the rules of.evidence apply in
this particular case. And so, in this particular
case, we're having an immunity hearing, what is
relevant are those issues related to a
self-defense-type argument, and character related to
that might be relevant, if they can link it up.

But right now what Mr. Michaels is asking fér,
is to put on character evidence to show that in the
way, way future he acted in conformity therewith.

.That's where we have the problem with linking
the evidence, so I still object to this line of
questioning. |

MR. MICHAELS: The problem that we have, the

thing that makes this kind of hearing a liﬁtle

- different, is because we're putting the trier of

fact in the shoes of Mr. Reeves.

If we're not aliowed to have testimony
regarding exactly who it is filling those shoes,
then it's problematic and he's not, frankly, getting

a fair opportunity to present his defense.

2/22/2017 State of Florida v. Curtis J. Reeves
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THE COURT: All right. As far as leeway goes,
the only way I'm going to allow it is testimony that
would indicate-something to do with whether or not
Mr..Reeves was a peaceful man, a patient man,
something along those lines, and I gather that's
where you were going with that.

MR. MARTIN: Just so that your ruling is clear
t6 the State, we're talking about the proper way to
present that reputation within the‘community and not
specific incidents.

THE COURT: No, that's incorrect. The rules
allow for an accused to bring that type of
testimony.

MR. MARTIN: At a trial.

THE COURT: I'm going to allow it.

MR. MARTiN: Thank you, Judge.

THE COURT: Uh-hum.

BY MR. MICHAELS:
Q. Let's talk about, Mrs. Reeves, about your
husband in the early years.

You kneﬁ he was a police officer. You've
already testified to that. Was he a guy who would bring
work home with him? In other words, would he come home
and say, "Oh, today I was out there catching bank

robbers," or any of that sort of thing?

2/22/2017 State of Florida v. Curtis J. Reeves
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A.

Q.

A.

Q.
A.
Q.

child, at

» © » ©O ¥

Q.

violence?

Al

Qf

No, he didn't bring it home.

When he was at home, did he -- in terms of his

relationship with his daughter, was he a caring person?

Oh, yes. There's nothing that he wouldn't do,

beneath him to do for his children. He changed diapers.

. He did everything.

Was he a peaceful person at home?

Yes.

Did he lose his temper, when Jennifer was a
Jennifer?

Not that I remember.

Did he lose his temper against you?

No.

Was he ever violent towards you?

Never.

Are you aware of him, in the early years when

Jennifer was a child, ever showing any characteristics of

No.
Or aggression?
No.
Or impatience?

I don't ~- yeah, I think he got impatient with

her at times, but seldom.

Okay. When he was impatient, would he show

2/22/2017

State of Florida v. Curtis J. Reeves
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A. Yes.
Would he'give attention to Matt?
Yes..
And to Jennifer?
Yes.
Was he a‘peaceful man at home?
Yes.
Did he show aggression?

No.

© » © » O ¥ O ¥

In those early years was he still a man --

after Matthew was born, was he still a man that would

Page 671
aggression or violence towards her?
a. No.
Q. Was he a ﬁerson who was trying to teach his
- children the right way?
A. Absolutely.
Q. Was he involved in their life when he would
come home from work?
A. Yes.
Q. Now, how old is Jennifer when Matthew comes
aloﬁg, when Matt comes along?
A. Three.
‘Q. And the same question as to Matt: When

Mr. Reeves, your husband, would come home, would he play

272272017 State of Florida v. Curtis J. Reeves
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come home from work'and kind of leave work at work?

A. Yes. |

Q. During the years when Matthew was a baby, did
you ever notice any aggression that Mr. Reeves ever
showed towards anyone else?

A. No.

Q. Now, as the children are growing up, does your
husband continue in the same way? In other words, as
he's rising through the ranks -- and you were aware that

he was getting promotions, right?

A. Yes.

Q. And you know about him going to school as well?
A. Yes.

Q. Anything'change at home?

A. No.

Q. Is he still a loving, caring person?

A. Yes.

Q. Still a peaceful person?b

A. Yes.

Q. Still not showing any aggression --

A. No.

Q. *—'inihis home?

A. No.

Q. And once he graduates from college, does

anything change in terms of him not being peaceful or not

2/22/2017 State of Florida v. Curtis J. Reeves
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being aggressive?
A. No.
Q. In fact, does anything change from the time

. that you got married half a century ago to this very

date --

A. No.

Q. —- in terms of his characteristic for being
peaceful?

A. No.

Q. For being caring?

Aa. No.

Q. For being responsible?

A. No.

Q. For always doing the right thing?

A. No.

MR. MARTiN: Your Honor, I'm going to object.
That's far beyond what you allowed as far as the .
characterization of Mr. Reeves.
MR. MICHAELS: I ﬁill move on, Judge.
THE COURT: Thank you. Sustained.
BY MR. MICHAELS:
Q. Now, in terms of physical characteristics, do
you have an old wedding picture?
A. Yes.

Q. Do you look the same?

2/22/2017 State of Florida v. Curtis J. Reeves
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A. Absoluteif not.
Q. What about your husband? Does he look the
same? |
A.  Oh, no.
Q. Okéy. So let's talk about some of those
_physical changes. Let's talk about any physical changes
you may have.

Are you the same or are you the same -- were
you the same on January 14th as you were back when you
got married in 1967%?

A. No.

MR. MARTIN: Your Honor, I'm going to object to
this line of questioning. Her travel through time |
and how her oﬁn body has changed is not relevant
here at all.

| MR. MICHAELS: Judge, it is relevant because
certainly Mr. Reeves has the right to be justified
in defending himself or another, and certainly his
wife sitting nexf to him in a movie theater is
somebody that he is Jjustified to protect as well as
himself.

Again, it goes to Mr. Reeves' mind set, his
perception. If a peréon who's seventy years old is
sitting in a theater and next to them is his elderly

wife also sitting in the theater, and that person

2/22/2017 State of Florida v. Curtis J. Reeves
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has some maladies or weaknesses or some fragility,
certainly that's going to color the individual's
perception inﬁb whether or not he needs to act in a.
certain way to defend himself anq to defend his
wife.

THE COURT: All right. I had a question of
that early oh with the first witness, his character
traits being described as one of knowledgelof
impending frailty or one for peacefulness.

Mr. Michaels?

MR. MICHAELS: I'm éorry, Your Honor.

THE COURT: What character trait are you
attempting éo elicif from this line of questioning?

MR. MICHAELS: Frailty of both Mr. Reeves and
Mrs. Reeves.

THE COURT: 1Is that character trait, knowledge
of impending frailty, that you're --

MR. MICHAELS: Actually, realization, because
it is no longer impending. It's here, the
realization that on that day, on January 13th of
2014, that she had the realization that she was
frail and thgt her husband had the same realization
as he éat next to her in that Cobb Theater.

MR. MARTIN: Judge, as I repeated over and

over, the criteria in an immunity hearing is the

2/22/2017 State of Florida v..Curtis J. Reeves
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25

knowledge of Mr. Reeves. If Mr. Reéves wanté to
take the stand and say, "My knowledge of my wife is‘
this, and maﬁge I did it because of this," that's
whét we're télking about.

We can't have his wife explain all the ailments
he may or may not know she has when it's not
relevant to what he knew. Thernly thing that's

relevant is what's in his mind. We can't impute or

assume by a witnesses' testifying that I have A, B

and C, that he knows it. He has to take the stand
and say what was in his own mind, so it's not
relevant for Mrs. Reeves to sit there and explain
all her ailments in this particular setting.

MR. MICHAELS: I think that we could be
secure -- aqd Mr. Escobar will correct me if I'm
wrong -- I'm sure we could be secure in the fact
that Mr. Reeves will indeed be testifying at this
hearing. There's no question about that.

MR. MARTIN: And that might be true, but his
knowledge miqpt be more or less than what we'll hear
from the sta;a.

So what we're doing here, we can't have our
cake and eat it, too. If Mr. Reeves is going to
testify, great. I'll handle it when Mr. Reeves

testifies, but Mrs. Reeves can't say, "I have these -

2/22/2017 State olelorida v. Curtis J. Reeves
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ihfirmities,“ and we impute that to Mr. Reeves
because they may change his mind and he may not
testify.

MR. ESCOBAR: I can assure the Céurt ﬁhere's no
way that I could keep Mr. Reeves off the stand. He
will be testifying in this immunity heariﬁg.

THE COURT: All right. That's neither --

that's not for my consideration about this witness

anyway .
To the extent that her testimony is -- leads to
that sort of character trait, which is -- I'm -- I

determined i§ part of the defense's theory, and in

light of the witnesses who have testified alreédy,

I'm géing to allow it. Overruled.
BY MR. MICHAELS: |

Q. So tell us a little bit, Mrs. Reeves, about how
your body and your abilities have diminished over the
years from when you were married up until January of
2014.

A. I have a#thritis in my hands, and it was in my
knee and I had a knee replacement three years ago, and I
have a nodule in my lung, and my pulmonologist sent me to
Moffitt, and --

MR. MARTIN: Your Hoﬂor, I'm going to object.

We can't have a lay witness come in and give medical

2/22/2017 State of Florida v. Curtis J. Reeves
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11

terms that, "I have this," or, "Some doctor told
me."

She can say, "My hand hurts," but she can't
give the diagnosis. That's a lay opinion that's not
appropriate. She can explain all her ailments and
how she feels, but she's not a doctor. '

MR. MICHAELS: I would be happy to go through
them all one by one, Your Honor, so I'm beginning

the question again.

BY MR. MICHAELS:

Q. Mrs. Reeves, you said that you have arthritis

and you're not allowed to say that.

Do your hands hurt?
A. Yes, they do.

Q. Okay. And show the Court your hands, if you

would, please?

A. (Indicating.)
Q. Okay. And they hurt when you do what?
A. I can't -- I can hardly open jars or bottles.

I wear a brace on my hand, but it's doing better now, but

I wore a brace for a while.

And --
A. They're weak.
Q. And what about -- do they get Stif£?
A. Yes. |

2/22/2017  State of Florida v. Curtis J. Reeves




10

11

12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23

24

25

Page 679

Q. Do they hurt when it's cold out?
A. Yes.
Q. Okay. How about your hips? We'll work our way

down. How are your hips?

A. They're goéd.

Q. What about your knees? You have pain in your
knees?

a. 'I have pain in my knees.

Q. Now, you have one knee -- without saying what
happened to it -- that fou had to go see a doctor about,
right? |

A. Right.

Q. And did you have to go to the hospital for that
particular knee?

A.  Yes.

Q. And when you went to the hospital, did they
knock you out at some point?
Yes.
And when you woke up, were you having pain?

Not immediately.

o » © ¥

‘All right. That was probably the mediciﬁe, but
after a while did you have pain?

A. Yes. :

Q. Where was that pain?

A. In my left knee.

1 2/22/2017 State of Florida v. Curtis J. Reeves
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A.
Q.
A.
Q.
- your knee.
A.

smaller.

A.

Q.

A.

Q.

A.

And were you in the hospital?

Yes.

How long were you in the hospital?
At least two days.

And when you woke up and looked at your knee,

was it open to the air or was it bandaged in some way?

It was bandaged.

And at some point they take the bandage of£?

Yes.

Tell me ﬁhether or not yéu saw any change in
Was .there a scar, for instance?

I had -- yeah, there was a big scar. Now it's

And did it hurt when you walked?
Oh, yes. ' -
Does it still hurt?

Yes.

What other parts of your body hurt or are

affected by age?

Let's talk about your skin. Let's talk about

that. When you were young and you bumped up against

something, would you bleed or bruise?

No.
What about now?

Yes, I do now.

2/22/2017
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.Q. - Do whiqh?
A. I bruise. There are‘dark purple. bruises on my
arms and my hands, and I bleedveasily.
Q. Okay. Can we see your arms? Cah you show the
' Court your arms?
A. (Witness complies.)
Q. 6kay.
A. This one is way up here.
Q. That's a bruise before —-- let me ask you this:

Before 2014, in January, had you ever fallen around the

house?
A. ‘Yes.
Q. And tell us about that. Was it a trip and fall

or just lose your balance and fall?
A. Probably losing my balance and fall.

Q. And, again, did your husband try to pick you

- up?
A. Yes.
Q. ﬁid he ever have problems picking you up?
A. Yes.
Q. Did he eQer almost fall picking you up?
A. Yes, I almost pulled him down.
Q. Now, what else hurts?
A. I cough and it's hard to breathe.
Q. Okay. So you have a problem breathing?

2/22/2017 State of Florida v. Curtis J. Reeves
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a. Yes.

Q. And have you had to go to a doctor regarding
that particular complaint or problem? |

A, Yes.

Q. Ana did you go to Moffitt Cancer Center for
them to examine you in some way"?

A. Yes.

Q. And did you start involving yourself in kind of
an exercise program of some sort?

A. Yes.

Q. And is that because you were preparing for some
sort of surgery pdtentially?

,A; If I had to have surgery, I was instructed to

do that, and even if I didn't have surgery that it would

help me out.

Q. Those were the doctors of Moffitt?
A. - Yes. _

Q. Now, létfs talk about your husﬁand. I$ he the
same -- in the same physical condition now or in 2014 of
January as he was back in 1967?

A. No.

Q. Tell me some of the differences that you're
aware of. |

A. He's gained a lot of weight, and he also

bruises very easily and bleeds easily, and he's got

2/22/2017 State of Florida v. Curtis J. Reeves
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problems with his shoulders and his back and his feet.

Q. Okay. Now, how do you know that he bruises
easily?

A. Because I see it.

Q What about the bleeding?

A. I see that.

Q By bléeding easily, gi#e an example to the

Court of how he started bleeding.
A. About -- the last time was about prqbably a
month ago.
Q. Well, before -- let's talk about before 2014.
A. Oh, okay. Just if he sticks himself, like
» picking up limbs or doing anything, he bleeds, and I put
something called Wound Seal on him.

Is that what you use for yourself as well?

A. Yes.

Q. Now, when he was younger did he used to run?

A, Yes, hé did. |

Q. When did that stop?

A. Before he went to work at Busch Gardens.

Q. .Okay. Oﬁce he started -- what year was that,
approximatqu?

A. At Busch Gardens?

Q. Yep.

A. It would be about -- oh, my.

2/22/2017 State of Florida v. Curtis J. Reeves
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Q. That was after he retired from the Police
Department?
A. After he retired, and I can't think of the date

right now.

Q. So if I say '93 or '94, does that sound about
right? |

A. Yes, yes. |

Q. So he stoppéd running, and did he start wearing

any kind of apparatus, that you noticed, for his back, or
anything like that, around the house?

A. When he worked in the yard, he would wear a
brace around his middle, and he bought -- when he was at
Busch Gardens, he had to walk a lot and he got orthétics,
and he bought Ecco shoes, which were much better quality.
than what he was wearing.

Q. Was he taking énything over the counter that is

usually for pain, that you're aware of?

A. Yes, he was.

Q. What was he taking?

A. Ibuprofen. .

Q. When he was working at Busch Gardens, did he

have any treatmeht on his feet that you're aware of? In
other words, did you see any kind of machine that he
used?

A. Yes, he got several shots, even back then, in

2/22/2017 State of Florida v. Curtis J. Reeves
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the bottom of his foot, and he used a TENS machine.
Q. Was he big into any sort of hobbies that you're

aware of, like woodworking, metalworking, that sort of

thing? .

A Yes, he did.

Q. Tell the Court some of the things that he would
do.

A. He.worked'with metal and he built two carports,

~ and when we had our property in North Carolina, he put
sides onto the little pump house that were metal, and he
put together a big metal building, like a barn, and he
did woodworking. He's built a lot of things out of wood;

swings, banks.

Q. How long ago was that?

A. (No response.)

Q. It wasn't last year, was it?

A. No.

Q. Was it 10 years ago or more?

A. Ten or more.

Q. What about around the house? Now, after you

moved from Lutz, yéu moved to Brooksville; is that right?
Yes.
Why did you build such a big house there?

I was hoping for a lot of grandchildren.

o ¥ © ¥

Okay. 'And if it's a big house, there must be a

2/22/2017 State of Florida v. Curtis J. Reeves
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lot of upkeep. Who'does the upkeep around the house?
A. My son has to do -- has to help out a lot.
Q. Now, when you first moved there -- how long
have you been there? Let me ask you that first.
A. I think twelve years. |

Q. When you first moved there, was your husband

- able to do a lot of things around the house?

A. Some. We've got a lot of ocak trees, and to
clean the gutters‘requires you to get on the roof because

there's -- we don't have a pool but there's a screen cage

over the patio, and I think he did that the first year

and then he just can't handle getting on the roof, so
Matt's our maintenance man now.
Q. Now, you have a granddaughter who's now five.

When your granddaughter was two years old or one year

| old, would your husband get on the floor and play with

her?

A. Some, yes.

Q. Did he eQer get stuck where you had to go and
try and help him out?

A. Yes.

Q. What about your husband working out? Did he at
one time work out in a gym?

A.  Yes.  His former Medicare insurance policy

included Silver Sneakers, so he could go to the gym for

2/22/2017 State of Florida v. Curtis J. Reeves
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did yoga, but he had to stop.

Q.  Is it true or not that he hurt himself doing
yéga? |

A. Yes, hé:did.

Q. So he's never been back to yoga or the gym?

A. No.

Q. How long ago was that?

A. Let's see. Maybe eight tq 10 years ago.

Q. True or false: One of the reasons your husband
retired from Busch Gardens was because it was difficult
for‘him to be on his feet so much?

A. True.

Q. Now, when your husband retired from Tampa
Pol;ce Department, did he ever show any signs whatsoever
that he missed the action of being a police officer, or

was he happy to be retired and home with you waiting for

- grandchildren?

MR. MARTIN: I'm going to object. Tﬁat calls
for speculation on her part.
THE COURT: Yeah, you can rephrase it.
BY MR.AMICHAELS:
Q. Well, did your husband ever show at any time
that he wasn't happy to be retired and not a police

officer anymore?

2/22/2017- State of Florida v. Curtis J. Reeves
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A. No, it was a relief.

Q. Did he display any kind of aggression

' whatsoever once he retired from the Police Department?

AL No.
Was he a peaceful person?
Yes.
A conscientious person?
Yes.
A responsible person?
Yes.
MR. MARTIN: Your Honor -- excuse me,
Mr. Michaels. I have an objection. We've -- I know

what this Court's ruling is and it was very, very
specific. Now we're throwing out terms in terms of

character. That's not what the Court allowed

Mr. Michaels to do, and if I could respectfully

réquest the Court to reminded Mr. Michaels exactly
what the limitations are so I don't have to keep
jumping up and down. I would appreciate it.

THE COﬁRT: I will sustain it to the
responsible part.

MR. MICHAELS: To the responsible part?

THE COURT: Yes.

BY MR. MICHAELS:

Q. So your husband was a caring person?

2/22/2017  State of Florida v. Curtis J. Reeves
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a. Yes.
Q. His characteristic was one of a peaceful
person?
A. Yes.
Q. A person who wasn't an aggressive person?
A. No.
Q. Now; you retiréd. Mr. Reeves, your husband, i;

retired. Now a grandchild comes along. Do you decide to

care for that grandchild?

A. Yes, I wanted to keep her and I knew that
Curtis wanted to travel some and he can't.
He came to me one day and he said, "I think we

should keep her for a while," so we canceled the trip we

A planned out west.

Q. And your granddaughter has been with you and at
your house ever since?

A. No, she éame to live with us when she was one.

Q. Okay. ‘So she lives with you now on at least a
part-timé basis®?

A. Part time.

Q. Now, let's talk about January 13th of 2014.

Okay?
A. Yes.
Do you recognize the date?
A. Yes.

2/22/2017 State of Florida v. Curtis J. Reeves
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Q. Now, I need you to think back to that day for
me.
Okay. Yes.

You went to a matinee?

» 0 ¥

Yes.

Q. Could you tell me about that? Why did you go

~to a matinee?

A. When we went to the movies, we usually went to
the matinee. I think it's cheaper, and my son and Curtis
had read the book Lone Survivor, and they had come home
from an archery hunting trip, and it's just kind of spur
of the minute, I think. They wanted to see the movie,
and I waﬁted to go because it was based on a true story.

Q. And so tell me what happens. Who drives to the

movie theater?

A. Curtis drives.

Q. And are you wiﬁh your son, Matt?

A. No. l

Q. What are the plans for Matt?

A, He was going to meet us there.

Q. Do you know what time you get to the movies?
A. Not exactly. We had plenty of time.. We

weren't running late, but I don't know what time.
Q. So when you get to the movies, I imagine, you

get a ticket and go inside?

2/22/2017 State of Florida v. Curtis J. Reeves
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A Yes.

Q. What happened onée you go inside? Where do you
go-?

A. The concession stand.

Q. And who goes to the concesgion stand?

A. Well, we both -- we both walked over to it.

Q. And your husband?

A. Yes.

Q. Where do you go? At the concession stand, what

do you buy?
A. Oh, popcorn and a drink.
Q. Now, once you buy the popcorn and the drink,

where do you go?

A.‘ I go té the restroom.

Q. Oncelyou come backlfrom the restfoom,_where do
you go?

A. Into the theater.

Q. Okay. So you get your drink, you get your

popcorn, you go to the restroom and you go into

Theater 10°?

A. Yes.

Q. Tell me what did you do once you get into the
theater? | | &.

A. We came around the little wall and people were
kind of -- it wasn't full, but people were spfead out.

2/22/2017 State of Florida v. Curtis J. Reeves
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And we

Q.
A.
Q.
do you

i

A.

Q.

A.
. Q.
A.

Q.

A.

Q.
you're
you're

A.

seats?

° » o ¥

were looking for, really, five seats so we could

have three and maybe an empty seat beside us.

Three seats fdr you, yoﬁr husband and your son?

Yes.

And so you go around the little wall, and where
look for seats?

In the upper section.

Okay. Do you all spot five seats or something

that looks like five seats?

Yes.
Where was that located?
At the very top row.

And that's the row that's right next to

CineBistro; is that right?

Yes, with a wall behiﬁd it.

So it's the very last row or the very first if
coming. back from there? It's the very last row if
looking up?

If you're looking up, it's the very last row.

The very first row if you're looking down?

Yes.

Who walks down the aisle first?

Curtis. |

Is that the way you would usually walk to your

. 2/22/2017
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A. Probably not.

Q. Why did you walk behind Mr. Reeves?

A. Because usually I go in first, but we were
going to put me between Curtis and my son.

Q. Now, as you walk in, are the previews on yet?

No.

Q. As you walk in, do you notice anybody using
their phone? |

A. Yes.

Q. And who do you see using their phone?

A. Mr. Oulson had his phone out, and I just saw
that the screen was lit.

| Q. Okay. Now, we're going to talk about what you

'remember, but let me ask you in terms of how this day,

how whét happened made you feel, tell the Court
emotionally what toll it had on you.
A, I've never been so scared in all my life.
MR. MARTIN: Your Honor, I'm going to object.
Relevancy.
MR. MICHAELS: Judge, it goes to. her testimony.
We have to look at her testimony in context.
Certainly she's telling the Court that she was
scared and so} you know, shé's going to tell the
Court what she remembers. She's telling the Court

how she felt when that day happened. It's -- we're

2/22/2017 = State of Florida v. Curtis J. Reeves
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going to get there one way or another, sb we're just
kind of framing what her experience was there, and
so I think it's relevant that she was fearful.

MR. MARTIN: Your Honor, her Aemeanor and her
feelings at that point are not relevant to any
material issue in this immunity hearing at all.
There's nothing for you to consider regarding how
she felt --

MR. MICHAELS: Well, here --

MR.AMARTIN: -- so I object as far as relevancy
for this particular hearing;

MR. MICHAELS: Here's why it's relevant: If we
have two people sitting in the theater, one
individual is accused of discharging a firearm
illeéally and he's‘telling the Cdurt that it waé a
justified use of his firearm because he was in fear
of imminent great bodily harm or death, somebody
sitting next to him can certainly -- it's certainly
relevant to try to understand what that person was
feeling.

If £hat person is in the same place, the same
dark theater with the same man coming over the same
seat, sitting next to the persbn that's accused, I
think that -- you know, I don't think there's a

relevancy issue at all here. She can certainly say

. 2/22/2017 State of Florida v. Curtis J. Reeves
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she was scared to death.

| MR. MARTIN: Judge, what we're talking about is
Mr. Reeves and what ever perceptions he Had. We
can't impute what Ms. Reeves might feel like as an
elementary school teacher, a banker and going and
working as a secretary to a seasoned veteran police
officer. It just doesn't -- you can't make that
logical leap that one will feel like the other.

It's not relevant as to how she felt about the
situation. ﬁe haven't even had the same predicate
that she saw even the same things that Reeves did.
There are too-many variables here to impute:

Because she was scared, he had the right to be
scared, so I object to relevancy.

THE COURT: All fight. I'm goihg to overrule‘
it. I'm very certain that if her testimony was that
she wasn't scared at all, the State would find that
very relévant) so I think it's relevant and I will

overrule.

BY MR. MICHAELS:

Q. So how did you feel that day as a result of

that day? How did it affect you emotionally?

A. That day --
MR. MARTIN: Excuse me, Judge. Now that I've

heard Mr. Michael's second question, he's asking her

2/22/2017 State of Florida v. Curtis J. Reeves
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after everything was over, how did she feel? That
is not relevant.

THE COURT: Let's get a little_more of a
predicate as far as what we're talking about.

BY MR. MICHAELS:

Q. You walk down the aisle following your husband,
right?

A, Yes.

Q. And you've already testified that you see

Mr. Oulson holding his phone in some way?

A. Yes.

Q. And is it -- do you see the light from the
phone?

A, Yes.

Q. lDo you hear hiﬁ‘ta;king on tﬁe phpne at ali?

A. No.

Q. Now, at that pbint do you sit down with your
husband? |

A, Yes.

Q. And are the previews on yet?

A. No.

Q. Where is Mr. Oulson related to -- in relation
to where you're sitting?
A. He's in front of me.

Q. Mr. Oulson is directly in front of you?

. 2/22/2017 State of Florida v. Curtis J. Reeves
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A.

Q.

A.

Q.

A.

Q.

A.

Q.

A.

Q.

A.

Q.
A.
Q.
A.

Q.

Yes.

And your husband is on the movie screen, and

you're seated in your seat. Where is your husband?

He's to my left in front of Mrs. Oulson.

Okay. Now, when you sit down, what happens?

What do you do? Do you take popcorn?

I took a Ziplock bag and I took part of the

popcorn so I could hold mine and he could hold his.
Now, you have your popcorn. What's on the

screen as you're sitting there?

It was not the previews. I don't remember
/

exactly, but it wasn't the previews.

Now, at some point the previews come on?

Yes.

And describe to the Court how you know the

previews are on.

They played the thing -- they played the

message to discontinue using your cell phones, and then

the previews came on.

Did the lights change?

Yes, mﬁéﬁ darker.

What about the sound coming from the screen?
Very, very loud.

Now you're seated there. The previews are on.

Do you see your husband lean forward at all?

2/22/2017
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A
Q.
A
Q.
A.

Q
A.
Q

» 0 ¥ O

Yes.
Do you hear anything that he says?
He spoke so softly, I don't think I did.

Did you see who he appeared to be talking to or

leaning towards?

Mr. Oulson.
Did you hear Mr. Oulson say anything?
Yes, I did.

Okay. Now, I know you don't want to use the

words but it's important that you use the exact words

that you recall. What did you recall Mr. Oulson saying?

A. He used the word "fuck" or '"fucking." He was
very loud, and Ifthink he -- the word "texting" and his
daughter. !

Qi‘“'And whén you heard tﬁat, the previéws were on?

A. Yes.

| Q. And his voice was louder than the previews?

A. Yes.

Q. Now, how did that make you feel?

A. It scared me. I was horrified that somebody

would act like that, especially in é movie theater.

Did you do anything at that point?
No.
‘What did your husband do?

He started to stand and he said, "I'm going to

2/22/2017
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go get the manager.'
And I said, "Let's just move," and he just

continued on.

Q. Do you know whether your husband heard you or
not?

A, I don't.

Q. Did he answer you in any way?

A. No.

Q. Now, your husband's off. He told you he's

going to see the manager. You're still in your seat.
What feelings are going through you at that point?

A. I don't want to be there, and I don't look
at -- I don't look at Mr. Oulson. It's like if I don't
look at him, he's not there.

Q. Kind of like a child?

A, Yes.

Q. Why were you feeling that way? Were you still
afraid?

A. Yes, I -- well, I don't know if I was afraid at
that point, but I just thought it was an awful way to
acE, We don't talk like that in my house.

Q. . Now, are you looking at the screen or what are
yoﬁ doing?

A. Probably.

Q. Now, at some point does your husband come back?

2/22/2017 - State of Florida v. Curtis J. Reeves



10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24

25

Page 700

A. Yes.
Q. Now tell me, when your husband walked past you
to go to the manager,'did you hear him grumbling at all?
A. No, I didn't hear anything.
Q. Was he acting in any way that you could tell
that he was angry in any way?
A. No.
Q. Was he doing anything other than walking slowly
down the aisle?
A That's what he was doing.
Now, he comes back in a couple of minutes?
Yes.
Do you remember that?
Yes.
What happene& when jour huéband comes back?
I hand him his popcorn and he sits down.
He sits back next to you?
Yes.
- And he takes his popcorn?

8
Yes.

© » © » ©O » O ¥ O ¥

Whét do you see néxt?

Now, before we get there, when your husband
sits down next to yéu, are ybu paying any attention to
Mr. Oulson when your husband first sits down or are you

still --

2/22/2017  State of Florida v. Curtis J. Reeves
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No, I'm not focused on him.
You're still hoping everything will go -away?
Yes.

Tell me what the next thing is that happens.

» © » O ¥

They both spoke, and I don't know who spoke

first, but Curtis leaned forward again.

Q. Could you hear any words that Curtis said?

A. I couldn't hear anything Curtis said.

Q. Could you hear anything that Mr. Oulson said?

A. Yes.

Q. What did Mr. Oulson say?

A. "You told on me. Who the fuck do you think you
are?" |

Q. Were the previews on?

A. Yés. | : | ~

Q. Was that stétement that you just said Mr.

Oulson said, "Who the fuck do you think you are," was
that louder than the previews?
A. Well, it was -- I can't say that it was louder

than the previews, but it was loud enough to be heard.

Q. It was.loud enough fér you to hear over the
ﬁreviews?

A. Yes.

Q. Are you looking now towards that direction or

are you still kind of looking straight ahead?

2/22/2017 State of Florida v. Curtis J. Reeves
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A. Well, I looked when Curtis leaned forward.

Q. What happened next?

A. Mr. Oulson quickly stood up and turned and he
leaned forward, and I thought he was coming over.

Q. Okay. So right after you heard, "Who the fuck
do you think you are," Mr. Oulson got up and faced you
and your husband?

MR. MARTIN: Your Honor, I'm going to object to
constant summarizing of testimony the way that

Mr. Michaels would like it perceived. This is a

who; what, where, how type of direct examination.

MR. MICHAELS: Judge, I appreciate the
prosecutor's criticisms; however, this is an old
prosecutor's method and I think they call it looping
in law scﬁool. We'ré jﬁst getting to fhe next |
question the same way the prosecutors do in every
single trial. There's -- we're just reframing the
quéstidn.

This is a lay witness. She's obviously upset.

I want to keep her focused and we want her to

'continue'on teiling what happened, so we're just

trying to frame it. I'm not testifying at all.

MR. MARTIN: Judée, we don't need to loop the
last five minutes of conversation. If he wants to

say, "Okay, he sat down and he had popcorn. What

2/22/2017 State of Florida v. Curtis J. Reeves
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happéned next? After he got the popcorn, what
happéned next?" But we don't loop the last five
minutes to get to what happened next.

MR. MICHAELS: Respectfully, I will let
Mr. Martin question people the way he wishes to.
would beg the Court to allow me to question the
witnesses the way that I wish to.

THE COURT: All right, as long as you don't

loop five minutes' worth.

MR. MICHAELS: All right. I promise it won't

be five minutes.
THE COURT: Thank you.
BY MR. MICHAELS:
Q. Okay. Now, you‘have Mr. Oulson saying, "Who
the-fuck do you~tﬁink you are,"-and he stands ﬁp. At

that point is the theater dark?

A. Yes.

Q. And are the previews on?

A. Yes.

Q. You're looking at Mr. Oulson at that point and

you seevhim lunging forward; is that correct?
A. Yes, I saw that.
Q. When jou say he was.leaning forwafd, describe
for the Court what it is that you were seeing at that

time.

2/22/2017 State of Florida v. Curtis J. Reeves
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A. It happened very quickly, and his whole upper
body just came forward and I thought that he was comipg
over.

Q. I would like for you to look at a videotape, if
you would. It's Exhibit 17. It's already been admitted

into evidence.
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MR. MICHAELS: Your Honor, this is quarter
speed 1, so with permission we will fast forward
through some of the gaps -- the Court already
understands that there's certain delays within it --
to allow Mrs. Reeves to look at the videotape.

THE COURT: Any objection to fast forwarding
through the blank one?

MR. MARTIN: No, but I\may have an objection to
tﬁe video once Qé Qet there. 'SoHif we can gét
there --

MR. MICHAELS: This is the video that's already
been admitted into evidence.

MR. MARTIN: I don't care. The question is
whether or not this witness will be allowed to view
it and comment on the content. That's what's at
issue.

MR. MICHAELS: Judge, ﬁhe plans are to allow
her to view it --

THE COURT: Uh-hum.

2/22/2017  State of Florida v. Curtis J. Reeves
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MR. MICHAELS: -- and then I'll question her
afterwards.
THE COURT: Okay. We can have a
contemporaneous objection at that point, I suppose.
(Video played.)
MR. MICHAELS: If we can pause it right there,
please.
BY MR. MICHAELS:
Do you recognize that person?
Yes. That's my husband.
Okay. Continue, please. Is that you?

Yes.

°© ¥ O ¥ O

Is that where you described earlier that you
both entered the theater and sat down initialiy?
A. 'Yes. |
MR. MARTIN: Your Honor, I'm going to object to
the constant running commentary on the video
suggesting/an answer to this witness about what the
content shows.
MR. MICHAELS: That's the same argument, and
I'm not sure -- could you please pause that, Mr.
Shah?
| It's the saﬁe argument. i’m not sure why we're

having it. The question calls for a yes-or-no

answer. This is a lay witness. This is somebody

_ 2/22/2017 State of Florida v. Curtis J. Reeves
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that's obviously been affectéd. I think -- I can
ask permission to even lead.this witness, frankly,
but I'm just asking questions that ask for a
yes—-or-no answer. I'm not suggesting at allvwhat
the answer may be.

THE COURT: I will allow her to answer.

MR. MICHAELS: Fast forwafd, please.

BY MR. MICHAELS:

Q. Go ahead. Was that last series where you

describe your husband sitting forward or not?

A, Yes.

,Q. Okay. Leaning fofward?

A. Yes.

Q. Speaking to Mr. Oulson?

A. Yéé. | |

Q. Okay. ﬁow, it's almost like your husband is

leaning forward a second time. Do you recall that?
A. Has he éone out?
Q. Go back a little bit, please, Mr. Shah.
See, it almost looks like Mr. Reeves is leaning
forﬁard a sécond ﬁime. Do you remember that?
A. I don't.
Q. Okay. Go aheaa.
That's your husband getting up; is that right?

A. Yes.

2/22/2017 State of Florida v. Curtis J. Reeves




10

11

12

13

14

15
16
17

18

19
20

21

22
23
24

25

Page 707

Q. Does your husband use the arm of a chair to
push off of to get up?

A. Certainly most of the time that's what I see.

Q. Is that your husband holding on to the wall as
he walks slowly past?

A. Yes.

Q. This is your husband coming back?

A. Yes.

Q. This is after the way you described after the
manager, he went to see the manager?

A. Yes.

Q. What is -- what do you seé your husband doing
here?

A, I'm nét sure.

MR. MICHAELS: Okay. Continue forward.
THE WITNESS: It's taking his popcorn from me.

BY MR. MICHAELS:

Q. Okay. Now he's sitting down; is that right?
Yes.
Q. Now, was it sometime after that that Mr. Oulson

stéod up and leahéd over the séat?

A. Yes.

Q. Now, would yoﬁ describé Chad Oulson coming-over
the seat in front of you? He's in the seat in front of

you; is that right?

2/22/2017 State of Florida v. Curtis J. Reeves’
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A. Yes.
Q. When he's coming over, is he coming directly
over towards you?
A. No.
How is he coming over?
A. He's going, like, for Curtis.
Q. So he's at an angle going towards --
A. I think so.
Q. -= Curtis?

Did you see what Mr. Ouison did after you
initially saw him stand up quickly and lunge over the
seat?

A. Before?

Q. Afterwards.

A. After?

Q. Not on the movie.‘ Do you remember what he did?
A. After he stood up, no. I just blocked it out.
Q. Okay. Do you know if you closed your eyes?

A I don't know.

Because it looked in the video, would you agree
Vwith me --

MR. MARTIN: Your Honor, I object to the
leading nature of the questioﬁ and commenting on the
content of the victim -- I ﬁean of the video to the
witness, "It looked like it to me."

. 2/22/2017 State of Florida v. Curtis J. Reeves
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THE COURT: 1I'll sustain.
MR. MICHAELS: I'll move on.
BY MR. MICHAELS:
Q. Did you see anything after Mr. Oulson was

lunging over the seat coming after Curtis®?

A. No. I wish I had.

Q. Whaﬁ's the next thing that you remember? You
hear a shot?

A, I hear a shot.

Q. After you hear the shot, does your husband say
anything to you?

A. Yes. He said, "He hit me in the face."

Q. And at that point do you-look over at your
husband or what do you do?

A. Hé had his hands-on his face, énd“I didn't
examine his face. I was -- I was Jjust -- I dén't know.
I just didn't know what had happened and I just couldn't
handle what happened.

Q. Did you see the gun?

A. It was -- the first time I saw the gun it was
lafing on Curtis{s leg, left leg.

Q. And at that point what emotions are you
feeling? Are you cryiné? |

A. I don't think I was crying then.

Q. Were you shaking?

2/22/2017 State of Florida v. Curtis J. Reeves
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A. Oh, yes.
Q. What was going through your mind in terms of
your emotions?

MR. MARTIN: Your Honor, the same objection,
relevancy at that point in time.

MR. MICHAELS: It's relevant, Judge, because he
later gives an interview to the detective shortly
thereafter.

THE COURT: .Overruled.

BY MR. MICHAELS:

Q. What were you feeling at that moment?
A. What I was I feeling?
Q. Now, take a moment and think about'it. Put

yourself back there and tell the Court what you were

feeling at that moment.

A. I just couldn't believe it.

Q. Were yoﬁ still scared?

A. Oh, yes. I was scared.

Q. Have you ever been as scared as you were on
that day-?

A. Never.

Q. On that moment, at that moment?

A. Never. o |

Q. So now what happened? Your husband tells you

that he's been hit in the face?

2/22/2017 State of Florida v. Curtis J. Reeves




10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18"

19

20

.21
22
23
24

25

® ®

Page 711

gun?

In the face.
He's holding his head in his hands?

Yes, he's got his hands up.

© ? ©O >

. And you said that somebody comes over for his

MR. MARTIN: Your Honor, we're back to the
looping. Can we please stop that?

THE COURT: Well, I didn't --

MR. MARTIN: It's the form of the question and
it's wﬁat -

MR. MICHAELS: Judge, a man's life is on the
line. We have his wife up here testifying about
what happened that day. She's already testified
about how shaken she was and, you know, we have
these -- 1 doﬁ't know what fhe legal objedtion is.
No looping? I've never seen that in tﬁe evidence
book.

I have no idea what Mr. Martin is objecting to
other than to try to stop me from questioning this
witness effectively.

' MR. MARTIN: I object to commenting on the
evidence and not having a direct question. It is
improper qﬁestioning, imﬁroper form. That's my
objection.

THE COURT: And leading. It was leading, that

1
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last question, so just rephrase.
BY MR. MICHAELS:

Q. After you saw the gun on your husband's leg,
what happened next?

A. A man came down the row on Curtis's left and
said he was an off-duty police officer or whatever,
sheriff's deputy or something, and he picked the gun up.

Q. Off of your husband's leg?

A. Yes.

Q. Did you sit theré next to Curtis or did you
move over?

A. I moved over. I think he told me to move over.
The man who took the gun took the clip out of it; and I
said something to Curtis.

Q.A What did yoﬁ*say?

A. I said, "What happened? You can't shoot into a

theater full of people," something like that.

And he said, "Not now," and then I moved over.
Q. Did your husbaﬁd ever point at you?
A. Not that I remember.
Q. Of cuss at you?
A. No.
Q. Now, you're not seated hext to him. You‘re

seated in a seat or two over, as you testified to.

Do you see your son, Matt, there at all?

2/22/2017  State of Florida v. Curtis J. Reeves
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A. Not then.
Q. When'do you see Matt?
A. I don't know if I had moved back nekt to
Curtis, but something happened before I saw'Matt.
Q. Whét happened?
A. I looked down and there was a cell phone

betwegn Curtis's feet, and popcorn, and I don't know why
Curtis didn't have his phone out but for some reason I
assumed that was his phone because I didn't expect
somebody else'é to be there.

And I asked the deputy, "Can I pick -- can I
get his phone?" And he said, "Don't touch anything," and
I felt like that meant Curtis, too.

Q. Let me show you what's been marked as Defense
Exhibit 41. | |

MR. MICHAELS: Judge, at this time we would
move into evidence Exhibit 41. They've been
stipulated to in terms of authenticity and chain of
custody.

I don't know if the State is going to require
me to lay é prediéate. Certainly I can with the
witness.

THE COURT: All right. It'will be admitﬁed.

MR. MICHAELS: And what number would that be

from the Court®?

1 2/22/2017 State of Florida v. Curtis J. Reeves
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THE COURT: 26.

(Whereupon, Defense Exhibit 26 for
identification was received in evidence by.the
Court.)

BY MR. MICHAELS:
Q. This is a composite of three photographs. This
is 2060459 JPEG. |

Do you recognize that, Mrs. Reeves?

A. Yes, I do.

Q. Okay. What are we looking at here?

A. That is in fropt of Curtis's seat.

Q. Is that the aisle that you were seated on?
A. Yes.

Q. And so I'm pointing to the popcorn. This
appears to be.popcorn. Is fhat in front of your
husband's seat?

A, Yes.

Q. And the row that I'm showing, pointing to,
thch appears to be right in front of the row with the
popcorn, is ﬁhat the row where Chad Oulson was?

A. Yes.

Q. There's a little bag that looks like of candy
down here that I'm pointiﬁg to. Do-you‘recognize that?

A. Yes, probably.

Q. Maybe -- can you see it better up there?

2/22/2017 State of Florida v. Curtis J. Reeves
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MR. MICHAELS: Can youizoom in at all?
THE WITNESS: Yes.
BY MR. MICHAELS:
Q. What is that?
A. 'Skinny Cow candy.
Q. And how do you recognize that?
a. Because I took it in.
Q. Okay. Now, once you're seated there, what's
the next thing that happens? Do you see that?
A. I saw Matt at the end of ﬁy row. He had blood

on his hands and on his clothes; and he came down and his
dad told him to get me out of there, but he said, "Let me
go clean up."

Q. Okay. So did he finally get you out of there?

A Yes, hé came and'got'ﬁe. |

Q. Where did you go?

A He sat me down at a table outside by the
concession stand, and someone, an employee of the theater '

told him he could have some bleach or something to try to

clean up better, so -- do you want me to keep going?
Q.A Yeah. Telllme what happehed. Did you stay
_there?
A. I stayed there.
Q. Did you move at some point?

At some point, but not then.

2/22/2017 State of Florida v. Curtis J. Reeves
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Q. Why did you move?

A. I moved when Matt came back'and because people
sat down. People came out of the theater, sat down, and
they were talking about it.

Q. What are some of the things they were saying?

A. I can't tell you.

MR. MARTIN: Your Honor, I'm going to object.

MR. MICHAELS: She said she couldn't tell me,
Judge.

THE COURT: What's your objection?

MR. MARTIN: Hearsay right now.

MR. MICHAELS: It definitely was going to be
offered for the proof of the matter asserted. I can
assure you that. At any rate, she said she can't
recall. | |

THE COURT: Okay. Move on.

BY MR. MICHAELS:

Q. So, then, now what happens? You're seated
there. Your son takes you away. Where do you go to?

A, We go stand in front of the concession stand.

Q. What‘s the nexﬁ thing that héppens?

A. Sheriff's deputies came through the front door,
and Matt had his badge out. Théy had guns. Ahd Matt
showed his badge and said that it was under control, but

they just rushed past.

2/22/2017 = State of Florida v. Curtis J. Reeves
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Q. Okay. And so do you wait there in the lobby?

A. The theater employee came and got us and said
we could go into an office.

Q. And what happened once you get in the office?

Does anybody come to join you?

A. Yes, a deputy stayed with us the entire time.
Q. At some point are you interviewed?

A. Yes.

Q. Now, when you're there in the front lébby and

you see the police come in with long guns. What were you

feeling®?
A. I was scared.
Q. And when you were put in the room by the

employee, how were you feeling?
A. I started crying.
/

Q. Now, at some point does a detective come and

speak to you?

A. Yes.

Q. Do you agree to speak to the detective?

A. Yes.

Q. Wheﬁ you were speéking to the detective, tell

me what you were feeling. Like, were you still scared?
A. I was very upset.
Q. Were you still crying?

A. Yes.

2/22/2017 State of Florida v. Curtis J. Reeves
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Q.

A.

"phone."

A.

o ¥ o

> o » O ¥

Q.

A.

Q.,

Now, in your statement you tell the detective

that your husband asked Mr. Oulson to stop using his

phone. Is that true?

A. That's what I thought to be true.

Q. Okay. So do you rémember your husband saying
those exact words, "Stop," or do you remember it as one

word, or tell me what you remember.

No. If I heard anything, that was the word
That's all I heard.

The police officer said you told him, and

there's a recording of it, that your husband handed the

gun to the off-duty police officer.

No, he picked it up.
Off of his lap?
Yes.

And, again, while you're giving the answers to

these questions, are you crying?

I may have stopped, but I was at first.
Okay. Were you shaking?
Yes.

Were you upset?

Very upset.

Were you still frightened from what happened in

the theater?

Yes.

2/22/2017

State of Florida v. Curtis J. Reeves

{




10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21

22

23 |

24 |

25

Page 719

Q.

Did you ever hear your husband say, "Stop

playing with your phone" --

A. No.
-- to Mr. Oulson?
A. No.
Q. What happened after you spoke with a detective?
A. I spoke to two detectives. 1 was concerned
about Curtis, you know, and I asked him about -- I asked
about Curtis, you know, what -- and what do I do?

And he said, "We'll take good care of him and

he'll call you tonight,"” and then they took Matt and I to

stand outside the theater where you buy your -- I don't

think it's where you buy your tickets, but we were on the

outside and they said, "Don't leave."

search my

Q.

o » O ¥

And they said that - they asked ?ermission to
car and said that they might impound it, and --
Did you give them permission to do that?

I did. I gave permission.

Okay. At some point you leave the theater?
Yes. Matt left his truck and drove me home.
Okay .

MR. MICHAELS: Your Honor, I've shown the

prosecutor what has been marked as Defense

Exhibit 60. I'm going to have to have it marked by

the Court Clerk.

2/22/2017
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Mr. Martin needs some time-to contemplate
wheﬁher there would be an objection or not at this
point, so if we could have that marked.

THE COURT: It only gets marked when it comes
in.

- MR. MICHAELS: All right. Whenever
Mr. Martin's ready.

THE COURT: Your exhibit number is what it will
be used before =--

MR. MICHAELS: Okay. In the meantime, may T
approach the witness?

THE COURT: You may.

BY MR. MICHAELS: |
Q. Without deséribing what it is, I want you to
look at what;s been markedfas Defense ExhibitaNumber 60;

Do you recognize that?

A. Yes. That's Curtis.

Q. Well, you're not supposed to say what it is yet
officially.

A. I'm sorry.

Q. 1It's okay. That's fine.

Is that a fair and accurate representation --
in other words, is that what he looked like that day, on
January 13th of 20142

A. His left eyelid looks red.

2/22/2017 State of Florida v. Curtis J. Reeves
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Q.. But you mean that's him from tﬁat day?
A, Yes.
Q. Okay.

MR. MICHAELS: At this time, Your Honor, we
would ask to admit Exhibit Number 60 into evidence.

TﬁE COURT: Any objection?

MR. MARTIN: ©No, Your Honor.

THE COURT: It will be admitted as Number 27.

THE CLERK: Yes, ma'am.

(Whereupon, Defense Exhibit 27 for
identification was received in evidence by the -
Court.)

MR. MICHAELS: Your Honor, may we position it
so that the Court can see it? Where does the Court
want it soAMrs. Reeves cén indicate whaf it is that
she's talking about? This is how big it is, so
maybe right here.

THE COURT: Or a little back so everybody can
see it.

MR. MICHAELS: That's fine.

THE COURT: Probably by the podium.

MR. MICHAELS: Okay. If you can come over
here. | |

THE COURT: Counsel can reposition, if you

wish.

2/22/2017 State of Florida v. Curtis J. Reeves
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MR. MARTIN: May I have Ms.
Madam Clerk, this is Number
THE COURT: 27.
MR. MARTIN: 27.
BY MR. MICHAELS:

Q. I'm showing you what's beeﬁ
MR. MICHAELS: Stand to the

please, so the Judge may see the

BY MR. MICHAELS:

Reeves come down?

257

marked as --
side, if you would,

photograph.

marked as 27.>

Q. I'm showing you what's been

A. Yes.

Q. Who is that a picture of?

A. My husband, Curtis.

Q. That's him from that day?

A. : Yes. n |

Q. Now, look -- you're looking at his face

closely. You said that you saw some redness on his eye

that wasn't there in the morning or it wasn't there?

A. I don't recall it being there.

Q You certainly look at his face every morning --
A Yes. |

Q. -- for fifty years?

A Yes.

you indicated that you observed?

Q. Would you point to the Court the redness that

2/22/2017 State of Florida v. Curtis J. Reeves
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A Right there.

Q. You're pointing to his left eyelid®?

A Yes.

Q. And do you see any other redﬂess? If yoﬁ want
to look closer at his left eye if you have to.

A. Right there.

Q. Okay. You're pointing to the corner of his

eye; is that correct?
A. Yes.
Q. All right. While you're here, let's look at
other photos. This one is mérked Exhibit 63.
Do you recognize this?
A. Yes.
Q. Is that a fair and accurate depiction of that
day, what it looks ;ike it is, in other words?
You're not allowed to say what it is, but do

you know what this is?

A. Yes, I do know what that is.
Q. And that's from that day?
A. Yes.

MR. MICHAELS: At this time I would ask to move
Defense Exhibit‘63 into evidence.

MR. MARTIﬁ: No objéctién.

THE COURT: It will be admitted as 28.

(Whereupon State's Exhibit 28 for

2/22/2017  State of Florida v. Curtis J. Reeves




w N

10
11
12
13
14
15
16

17

18 .

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

Page 724

identification was received in evidence by the
Court.)
BY MR. MICHAELS:
Q. I'm showing you what has been marked as
number 28.
MR. MICHAELS: Can you see it, Jﬁdge?
THE COURT: I can.
BY MR. MICHAELS:

Q. Come up here, please, Mrs. Reeves.

I'm showing you what has been marked as Exhibit

28. Do you recognize what?

A. Yes.

Q. What are we looking at?

‘A, Curtis's hands after they had handcuffed him.

Q. Okay. Now I'm.indicating sométhing that |
appears to be a cut on his middle finger next to his
wedding ring on that finger.

Do you see that?

A. Yes, I do.

Q. Was that there that morning?

A. I don}t recall anything being on his hands.

Q. Okay. So you didn't see any cuts and
bruises -- |

A. No.

Q. -- or any injuries to his hands at all that

2/22/2017 State of Florida v. Curtis J. Reeves
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morning?
A, No.
MR. MICHAELS: Thank you. You can retake your
seat.

THE WITNESS: (Witness complies.)
BY MR. MICHAELS: ¢
Q. Now, part of the process to get here involved
you being questioned by Mr. Martin. Do you remember
that?
Yes.
At a deposition?
Yes.
With a court reporter like @his?
Yes.

Taking down every word?

» o0 » O ¥» O ¥

Yes.
Q. And how did Mr. Martin make you feel with his
questioning?

MR. MARTIN: Your Honor, I'm going to object.
There is no relevancy there.

MR. MICHAELS: Judge, it has to do -- if he's
going to impeach her with the étatement, frankly,
she wa$ scared to deéth of him. Sﬁe left there
shaking like a leaf.

THE COURT: She can testify to that if that's

2/22/2017 State of Florida v. Curtis J. Reeves
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her answer.

MR. MICHAELS: Okay. So is the Court going to

allow her to answer now?

THE COURT: No. No, she hasn't been impeached.

MR. MICHAELS: Okay.

BY MR. MICHAELS:

Q.

Let me show you what's been marked as SM13.

It's stipulated to exhibit at this point.

MR. MICHAELS: Do you mind if I move this into

evidence at this time?

MR. MARTIN: Have at it.

MR. MICHAELS: I would move SM13 into evidence

as Defense Exhibit 29. They don't allow us to carry

scissors in here.

BY MR. MICHAELS:

you.

Q.

» o »

Q.

This is Defense Exhibit Number 29. Let me show

Do you recognize thét shoe?

Yes.

Okay. Whose shoe is that?.
- That's Curtis's.

Is that the shoe he was wearing that afternoon

ét the matineeltheater of Lone Survivor?

A.

Q.

I assume so.

Why is it that he bought those shoes?

2/22/2017
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A. He bought those shoes because it was hard for
him to tie his shoe.
Q. And these just tie by pulling on this?
A. They fasten the same way my five-year-old

granddaughter's shoes do.

MR. MICHAELS: May I have a moment, Judge?

THE COURT: You may.

MR. MICHAELS: No further questions.

THE COURT: Do you mind if we take a recess?

MR. MARTIN: No.

THE COURT: You probably will be a little
lengthy.

MR. MARTIN: Yes.

THE COURT: We will go ahead and take a
ten-minute recéss. | |

Ms. Reeves, please don't discuss your testimony
with anyone,during the recess. Okay?

THE WITNESS: Yes.

(Whereupon at this time a brief recess was
taken.)

THE COURT: Is'Mr. Martin doing the cross,
Mr. Garcia?

MR. GARCIA: Yes, Judée. He should be here
shorﬁly.‘ He's right behind you.

MR. MARTIN: Are you ready, Mr. Martin?

H
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CROSS-EXAMINATION
BY MR. MARTIN: | |
Q. Good éfternoon.
A. Hi.
Q. May I ask you to do me a favor before we get

started? If possible, can you full that seat jﬁst a
little bit closer to the microphone? You're very soft
spoken. And maybe if you can jﬁst bring it down, you
know, the microphone -- there you go.
Jusﬁ remember to keep your voice up so that we
can hear you. Okay?
A. I'll try.
Q. That was perfect. BAll right.
Ms. Reeves, what I would like to do, I would
like to take you 5ack té January 13, é014. As soon‘as I
said those words your eyes closed and I saw a grimace on
your face.
Does that day bother you?
A. Yes, it does. I don't like to think about it.

Q. ~Well, you've had an opportunity to go through.

and talk to -- with Mr. Michaels about what happened that

day, and this is my time to go through and ask you some
more questions about it. Okay?
A. . Okay.

Q. All right. So we're géing to get through it,

. 2/22/2017 State of Florida v. Curtis J. Reeves
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right?
A. Right.
Q. Let's start with while you and Mr. Reeves are

at home, when was it decided that you would meet with
Matt and go to the movies? |

A. I think Matt and Curtis decided that.

Q About what time ih the morning?

A. I don't know.

Q Just as a frame of reference, on that day the
movie starts at 1:20. People usually get there a little
bit before.

About what time did you leave your residence in
order to make a 1:20 matinee movie at Cobb Theater?

A. We were there well before 1:20. I'm not sure.

Q. Ailhright. Was fhere any prepération at your
house to get ready, special clothing, special hygiene
issues, anything to get ready to go to the movies?

A. Nothing special.

Q. Now, when Mr. Reeves left the house on
January 13,'2014, to meet your son, Matf, at the movies
at Cobb Theater,.he had a loaded pistol in his right
pocket; did he not?

A. I wasn't aware of it. 1It's not something that

we discuss. He doesn't say, "I've got my gun." I don't
ask have you got your gun?" It's just assumed.

2/22/2017 State of Florida v. Curtis J. Reeves
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Q. And on that day you assumed he had his gun?

A. I didn't think about it.

Q. The car that you drove to ﬁhe movies that day,
whose car is what?

A. It was the car that I drove most of the time.

Q. The more than fifty rounds of ammunition that
was in the car, in the console area of the car, does that
ammunition belong to you?

A: No.

Q. You saw that ammunition in the car; did you
not?

A. No, I didn't.

Q. Is there anyone else who would have'had access

to the cars to put a box of ammunition in the car?

A No. ‘ ey
Q. Only Mr. Reeves?

A. Yes.

Q. Then would you assume that if that box of ammo

was in your car, that your husband put it in there?
a. Yes.
MR. MICHAELS: Objection; Calls for
speculation.
MR. MARTIN: That's a logical iﬂferenée based.
on what she just said.

THE COURT: Overruled.

2/22/2017 State of Florida v. Curtis J. Reeves
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MR. MICHAELS: I also have a relevancy
objection as well.
THE COURT: I'll overrule that as well.
BY MR. MARTIN:
Q. That's a logical inference. If you didn't put
it in there -- it's your car -- the only other person who

had access is Mr. Reeves, so Mr. Reeves put the ammo in
the car, right?

A. Right.

Q. So we.get.in the car. We have ammunition in
‘the car. We have a gun in Mr. Reeves' right pocket.'
We're driving to the movie.

Is there any discussion about where or when

you're going to meet Matt at the movies?

A. I don't fhink so. |

Q. All right. And when you got to the movies, did

you park in a handicapped spot?

A. No.
Q. Do you have a handicapped sticker on your car?
A, No.
Q. | Now, as we geflto the parkihg lot of the movie

theater, you both get out of the car, right?
A. Yes, sir.
Q. And you both walk to where you get your

tickets, right?

2/22/2017 State of Florida v. Curtis J. Reeves
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A. Yes.

Q. Now, at that time is Mr. Reevés using a walker?
A. No. |

Q. Is he using a cane?

A. No.

Q. Is he wearing his Back brace?

A. No.

Q. Does he have any type of knee brace on?

A. No.

Q. Does he lose his balance and fali down in the

parking lot?

A. No.

Q. Does he have any problem navigating through the
artifacts that are in a parking lot, like curbs and curb
stops and medians? | |

A, No.

Q. Now, before you got'out of the car, did you see
Mr. Reeves remove a firearm from his pocket and leave it
in the car?

A. No.

Q. So as you're walking to Ehe movie theatér,

you're still under the same assumption, based on your

life experience with Mr. Reeves, that he has a loaded
pistol in his right pocket --

A. Yes.

2/22/2017 State of Florida v. Curtis J. Reeves®




10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24

25

Page 733
Q. —-'right?
A. Yes.
Q. Now, were you at the ticket window when
Mr. Reeves purchased the tickets?
A. I think -- I don't think I was.
Q. Okay. After the tickets were purchased, were

you with Mr. Reeves as you walked through the doors into
the lobby of Cobb Theater?

A. I really don't remember. I assume that we
walked in together.

Q. And, 6f course, again at that time you're still
under the assumption that Mr. Reeves has a loaded pistol
in his right pocket. Right?

A. Yes.

>Q. As you wélk past those doors, knowinngr
assuming that Mr. Reeves has a loaded pistol in his
pocket, you walk right by the sign, the little circle
with the line through it that says, "No guns, no knives"

MR. MICHAELS:-_Objection. Relevancy.
BY MR. MARTIN:
Q. -- right?
THE COURT: Overruled.
BY MR. MARTIN:

Q. You walked past, right past that, didn't you?

2/22/2017 State of Florida v. Curtis J. Reeves
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A, I guess we did.
Q. And that was a policy of the Cobb Theater,
right? It was their --

MR. MICHAELS: Objection. Calls for
speculation. There's been no predicate that she
knows or doesn't know the policies.

THE COURT: Argument?

MR. MARTIN: Sure.

BY MR. MARTIN:

Q. Did you see the 5ymbol on the sign?

A. I've seen it. I don't know if I saw it that
day.

Q. All right. Now,_the Cobb Theater put that up.
It's on their door, right?

A.4 Right. |

Q. All right. So as you walk through the doors
with the symbol that safs, "Nb guns, no knives," you
walked through the door with your husband under that same
assumption that he has a loaded pistol in his right
pocket, right?

A. Right.

Q. You did not go over and say, "Hey,
Mr. Reeves" -- I know you don't call him that, but I have
to -- "there's a sign there that says -- maybe you should

leave your gun out there, because they don't want them in

2/22/2017 ~ State of Florida v. Curtis J. Reeves
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here." You didn't tell him that, did you?
A. No.
Q. Now, there was a -- as you testified, before

the previews there was an advertisement or notice up on

the screen that says, ”Pleaée put away your cell phones,"

right?
A. Yes.
Q. You feit that was important?
A. Yes. |
Q. All right. So that the patrons can enjoy the

movie experience, if you will?
A. ‘ Yes. |
Q. All right. BAnd did you find that any more
important than the Cobb Theater putting the placard on
the front door saying, "Please don't bring your gun in"?
MR. MICHAELS: Objection. Relevancy. What she
thinks is more important, one or the other, is
irrelevant. -
MR. MARTIN: It goes to what she did and how
she actéd with her husband.
MR. MICHAELS: Judge --
MR. MARTIN: Judge --
- MR. MICHAELS? -- we're literally asking her to
compare an apple and an orange. That's what we're

doing.

2/22/2017 State of Florida v. Curtis J. Reeves
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THE COURT: I will overrule it, but let's not

go much\further in that route.
BY MR. MARTIN:

Q. My question to you, do you feel that that sign
that says, "Please don't" -- it doesn't say, "Please,"
but it says, "Don't bring your guns and knives into our
theater" --

MR. MICHAELS: Objection. That's a
mischaracterizétion of what the sign is in the
front. There's been no evidence that's what the

~sign is.

MR. MARTIN: She just indicated she realized it
was there. She admitted it was there. I'm just
going forward to what she's already testified to.

MR.lMICHAELS: I think the question originally
had to do with a circle and a slash kind of thing.
At least that's what the hand motion Mr. Martin was
making.

Now we have some hand motion indicating kind of
the script going back and forth of some sort.

THE COURT: Clarify first.

BY MR. MARTIN:

Q. There's a placafd that's a cifcle with a 1iné

through it, almost like a universal symbol. Something

behind that means: We don't want'it, right? You're

2/22/2017 State of Florida v. Curtis J. Reeves
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aware of that?

A. Yes.

Q. All right. And that's a type of symbol. There
were no words. It was just a picture of a knife and a
gun with a circle with a line through it, right?

A. Yes.

Q. All right.

A I don't -- I cannot describe it exactly. I
know I've seen it, but I can't describe it.

Q. And you know that to be universally accepted,
with no words, that whaﬁever is behind that circle with a
line through, it's something that is prohibited in that
area®?

A. Yes.

Q. Okay. ‘So my quesﬁion‘to you is when you heard
the advisement about no cell phones; put them away before
the movie starts, that prohibition, did you feel that
that prohibition was any more important than the one out
front dealing with the circle with the line:' No guns?

A. I think it depends on the person.

Q." Depends on Ehe person.

Do you believe that Cobb Theater hés the right
not oﬁly to ask that phones be put away forAthe benefit
of the patrons and also had a right to prohibit firearms

in their theater?

2/22/2017 State of Florida v. Curtis J. Reeves




10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24

25

Page 738

MR. MICHAELS: Objection. Calls for
speculation. There's been no pfedicate that's been
laid that she has any sort of knowledge.

THE COURT: Sustained.

MR. MARTIN: I didn't ask for --

MR. MICHAELS: (Indiscernible.)

MR. MARTIN: I didn't ask for speculation I
asked in her opinion, and she is a lay person and
can render that opinion.

MR. MICHAELS: An opinion as to why Cobb
Theater is doing something?

'THE COURT: Sustained.

BY MR. MARTIN:

Q. Once you go into the concession area and you
purch#se the food itéms for the moﬁief Mr. Reeveé still
has the loaded pistol in his right pocket?

A. Yes. |

Q. As you walk into Theaﬁér 10 and begin to walk
up the stairs to find your seat, Mr. Reeves stiil has the
loaded pistol in his righf pocket; does he not?

A. Yes. | |

Q. As he's walking down the aisle and you're
following him dowﬁ the aisle until you actuallj take the
seat and you sit down with your popcorn and your drink

and your -- whatever that candy was; Mr. Reeves still had
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a loaded pistol in his right pocket, right?

A. ° He never took it out, so, yes.

Q. Okay. Now, you indicated that once you took
your seat at some point in time you realized that Mr. and
Mrs. Oulson were in front of you. I believe you
indicéted that Mr. Oulson was in front of you and Mrs.
Oulson was in front of your husband, Mr. ﬁeeves --

A. Yes.

Q. -- is that correct?

A. Yes.

Q. Okay. It was your husband, was it not, that

initiated the nonconsensual contact with Mr. Oulson by
leaning forward and speaking to him, correct?

MR. MICHAELS: Objection to the
charécterization a§ nonconsensuai contact. He
leaned forward apparently and maybe ﬁhispered
something, but the characterization of nonconsensual
contact, Judge, shouldn't be allowed here. It's
impermissible.

MR. MARTIN: That's what it was. Let me follow
it up.

BY MR. MARTIN:
Q; Mrs. Reeveé, did Mr. Oulsbn, before Mr. Reeves
had any contact, turn around and say, "Hey, buddy. Nice

to see you. If you want to talk to me any time, just

2/22/2017 State of Florida v. Curtis J. Reeves
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1 lean forward and you can talk to me"? Did he say that?
2 'A. No.

3 Q. All right. Tongue in cheek a little bit, but
4 there was no sign on his back saying, "Hey, anybody can
5 talk to me," right?

6 | A. No.

7 Q. I mean tongue in cheek, but that was not the

8 case, right?

9 A. No.

10 MR. MICHAELS: Judge, objection. This is

11 harassment. The Court has inherent power to protect
12 a witness from being harassed.

13 MR. MARTIN: I'm moving on.

14 THE COURT: I think that is in response to the

15 objectién,‘but let's - yeah, let‘s.——

16 'MR. MARTIN: I'm moving on.

17 THEACOURT: Let's move on.

18 MR. MARTIN: All right.

19 BY MR. MARTIN:
20 Q. Mr. Oulson had absolutely no contact with your
21 huéband until youf husband, Mr.'Reeves, leaned forward
22 and had contact with Mr. Oulson; isn't that cor;ect?

23 A. .Yes. |

24 Q. Mr. Oulson never turned around and said

25 anything to Mr. Reeves before Mr. Reeves leaned forward

2/22/2017 State of Florida v. Curtis J. Reeves
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and had contact with Mr. Oulson?
‘A. Vérbal contact?
Q. Verbal contact. Leaning forward. Spoke,

right? That's what you said.

A. Right. He didn't touch him.

Q. All right. And at the time that Mr. Reeves
chose to have that contact with Mr. Oulson and lean
forward and say whatever you said he said, he had that
gun in his right pocket; did he not?

A. Yes, sir.

Q. ﬁow, you've watched the video. We're not going
to play the video again, but just to remind you that you
had watched it. You watched the whole thing.

~ After that initial contact with Mr. Oulson he
héd a second coﬁtact with Mr.AOulson, didn't'he?

A. Yes. |

Q. And that was after Mr. Oulson, according to
you, had some kindvof nasty things to say back to your
husband, right?

"A. - Yes.

Q. So after your husband, Mr. Reeves, knew that
Mr. Oulson really didn't want to have any more contact --

MR.-MICHAELS: Objection. Specﬁlation. Now
we're talking about how he knew he didn't want to

have contact.

2/22/2017 State of Florida v. Curtis J. Reeves:-
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THE COURT: Sustained.
Rephrase;
MR. MARTIN: I will, and I appreciate that,
Judge.
BY MR. MARTIN:

Q. The comments made by Mr. Oulson back to
Mr. Reeves clearly indicated that he didn't want to have
any contact with your husband, right?

MR. MICHAELS: Objection. It would be
speculation on her part. All she knows is that she
was scared to death when she heard that.

MR. MARTIN: She heard disparaging remarks. It
wasn't, "Hi. Nice talking to you."

THE COURT: Overruled.

MR. MICHAELS: She doeén't know what Mr. Reeves
was tﬁinking. That's what he's asking.

'THE COURT: No, I didn't think that was what he
was -—--

MR . MARTIN: No, that's not.

THE COURT: All right.

' THE WITNESS: Would you ask me that again?
- MR. MARTIN:‘ Sure.
BY MR. MARTIN:
Q. Based on Mr. Oulson's response to your

husband's first contact, there was nothing about that

2/22/2017 State of Florida v. Curtis J. Reeves
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response that would indicate to anyone that he welcomed
that first contact, right?

A.  Right.

Q. And as you previously testified just a few
minutes ago, Mr. Reeves then leaned forward and had a
second contact with him, right?

A. Yes.

Q. And he did that after Mr. Oulson's words to him
were clearly not friendly, right?

A, Right.

Q. And he leaned forward and had a second contact
with Mr. Oulson while he had a loaded pistol in his right
pocket, right?

A. Yes, sir.

Q.' ‘After that éecond contact Mr. Reeves had-one"
last contact with Mr. Oulson before he got up and left
for the manager, right?

A. I don't recall all those contacts. When you
said second contact, I thought you meant when he came
back from the manager.

Q. No; ma'am. You know we weren't talking about
that.

| MR. MICHAELS: Judge, objection.

MR. MARTIN: We»wa:e talking about before he

went to the manager.

2/22/2017  State of Florida v. Curtis J. Reeves
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THE COURT: Let's keep the comments.

MR. MARTIN: I understand, Judge.

MR. MICHAELS: And number 2, Your Honor, the
testimony from this witness was that she didn't
remember the second contact.

THE WITNESS: I just -- I don't.

MR; MICHAELS: We looked at the video and she
said she didn't remember it.

MR. MARTIN: Now Mr. Michaels is testifying for
his witness. May I just please conduct my
cross-examination, please?

THE COURT: Go ahead.

MR. MARTIN: Thank you.

BY MR. MARTiN:

.Q. Before Mrp Reeves got ub and went to domplain
to the manager, hg had one last contact with
Mr. Oulson =--

MR. MICHAELS: Objection to the
characterization of the contact with the manager as
a complaint. There's been no évidence regarding
that'Mr. Reeves did anything but politely go to the
management station. We had not heard one thing
where Mr. Réeves was compléining.

MR. MARTIN: This is cross-examination.

THE COURT: I'll overrule as to that objection.

2/22/2017" State of Florida v. Curtis J. Reeves
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BY MR. MARTIN:

Q. As ~-- or right before Mr. Reéves got up to go
complain to the manager, he had one last contact with
Mr. Oulson; did he not? |

A. I don't remember that.

Q. Something to thé effect of, "I'm going to the
manager," or something like that?

A. He told me that. I don't know if he told

Mr. Oulson that.

Q. Okay; And you said, "Well, let's just move,”
right?

A. Yes.

Q. ‘All right. Now, you know where we are in the

scenario, right? Mr. Reeves is standing up and he's
going to complain ‘to the manager, right? That's where

we're at. That's all I'm talking about.

A. He didn't say, "I'm going tp go complain." He
said, "I'm éoing to get the manager."

Q. He's leaving the theater to go to the manager.
All right?

A. All right.

Q. Thank you.

Now, you explained on'direct examination that
at that point you were scared, right?

A. I was uncomfortable because I'm not used to

2/22/2017  State of Florida v. Curtis J. Reeves
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such language, and I'm not used to people acting like
that.
Q. You didn't tell us on direct examination that
you were scared and frightened?
A. That happened after Mr. Oulson stood up.
I probébly was scared becausé I was just

shocked. I was shocked that somebody would act like

that.
Q. And you've been married, what, 49 years”?
A. Yes.
Q. And Mr. Reeves would be well aware of how

things affect you, right?

A. Yes.

Q. And when he went, got up and was walking to
leave to go.to the managef or get the ménager, you
indicated to him, "Let's just move," something like that?

A. Yes.

He just kept on walking, didn't he?

Yes. I don't know if he heard me or not.
He left you there?

Yes.

And you were scared and frightened --
Yes, sir. |

-- and he left you?

» 0 ¥ O ¥ O ¥

Yes.
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Q. He walked out of that theater with a loaded
pistol in his pocket to go complain to the manager,

leaving you in your seat scared, right?

A. Yes, sir.

Q. Mr. Reeves is gone maybe two minutes?

A, I don't know how long. A short time.

Q. Could we agree on "short" being less than five
minutes?

A.‘ Yes.

Q. Okay. Ballpark, just a bracket, right?

A. Yes.

Q. The entire time that you were there, did you

take it upon yoﬁrself to get up and leave and go sit
someplace else?
| A. No, I didn't. I thought about it, but I
didﬁ‘t.

Q. Mr. Oulson is sitting right in front of you,
less than two feet away from you, right?

A. Right.

Q. And this is the man that had that kind of terse

convérsation with ybur husband that resulted in him

leaving?
A. Yes.
Q. Mr. Oulson, while he was sitting there and your

husband was gone, he never turned around and spoke to

2/22/2017 State of Florida v. Curtis J. Reeves
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you, did he?
A. No, I wasn't looking at him, no. He didn't
speak to me.

Q. He never got up, turned around and- spoke to

you?
A. No.
Q. He never spoke to you, without turning his

head, in a loud voice so you could hear him?

A. No.

Q. Basically he ignored that you were even there?
A, Yéah.

Q. There comes a time that Mr. Reeves returned

from going to the manager, and he comes back and he
begins to walk down fhe»aisle. That's what I want to
talk about. Okayé | |

A. Okay .

Q. When he returned and then starts tb walk down
the aisle, he has to walk past you, right?

A. Yes.

Q. I'll try to phrase it in a way -- I know it's
not litéral, but if we}re in a movie theater and someone
is in front of you, you have to step over, around, or
whatever, to get past him, right?‘

A. Right.

Q. That's what Mr. Reeves did in this particular

2/22/2017 State of Florida v. Curtis J. Reeves
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case? He had to get past your feet and the aisle and
your knees bécause it's just a very close area, right?

A. Yes, sir.

Q. And there were some other people sitting down
the way also that he had_to get by?

A. Yes.

Q. While Mr. Reeves was gone, at any time did'yoﬁ
see Mr. Oulson in any way in possession, using, however

you want to describe it, his cell phoné?

A. No, sir, but I wasn't looking.at Mr. Oulson.
Q Could you see his wife, Nicole?

A. I wasn't looking at her, either.

Q You saw the two people, you saw the person in

front of you just out of your peripheral vision, if you

will, and you were looking at the screen; would that be

safe to say?

A. It might be.

Q. Okay. When Mr. Reeves returned, were you under
the same assumption that he had.a loaded pistol in his
right pocket? | )

A. fes.

Q. As he was walking past you, of course, as he
walked past you Mf. Oulson is riéht in front 6f you.

Does Mr. Oulson turn at all to acknowledge that someone

is walking behind him?

2/22/2017 ~ State of Florida v. Curtis J. Reeves
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A. Not that I'm aware.

Q. Does Mr. Oﬁlson say anything to Mr. Reeves as
he ﬂalked behind him?

A. (No response.)

Q. Does Mr. Oulson say anything to your husband as
he walked behind him?

A. I think that occurred a little bit later.

Q. I appreciate you saying that. We want to keep

it as he returned to his seat before he sits down, okay.
So ﬁy question to you is when he's returning

from the manager, before he sits down to take out the

popcorn, does Mr. Oulson say anything to Mr. Reeves?

A Not that I remember.

Q. Does Mr. Oulson turn without saying anything
and, 1ike; glare at him:or have a froﬁny face, or |
whatever you want to call it, to look mean?

A. I don't know that. I did not see that, but I
wasn't looking at him.

Q. Did you have any indication before Mr. Reeves

sat down, after returning from the manager, that Mr.

Oulson had any contact whatséever with youf husband?

A. Before my husband sat down?

Q Yes, ma'am.' |

A. I don't remember any contact.

Q Now, whén Mr. Reeves returned and begins to sit

C2/22/2017 State of Florida v. Curtis J. Reeves
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down, either as he's sitting down or just after he sits
down, Mr. Reeves has contact again with Mr. Oulson; does
be not?

A. Right, but I handed -- before that happened, I
handed Curtis his popcorn, and then he sat down.

Q. Yes, ma'am. Thank you.

Now, after -- that particular contact with
Mr. Oulson was no diffefent than the‘first.contact with
Mr. Oulson in that it was not solicited by Mr. Oulson,
Mr. Reeves took it upon‘himself to lean forward and again
have contact with Mr. Oulson, correct?

A, He leaned forward, but I don't know who spoke
first.

Q. And this is the same man that while, before
Mr. Reeves léft, contact. was such that you were scared
and frightened?

A. ‘Yes.

Q. All right. This was the same man that had the
one, two, if not three contacts with him before he went
to the manager and there was some argument and some very
nasty remarks, right?

I don't —--
The same man?

The same man, but I don't call it an argument.

o ¥ © ¥

Okay. And when Mr. Reeves leaned forward to
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that same man that had those very disturbing remarks,
like you described them, back to Mr. Reeves, he did so

with a loaded pistol in his right pants pocket; did he

not?
A. When Mr. Reeves leaned forward?
Q. Uh-huh.
A. Yes.
Q.

You mentioned during direct examination that
after the shot was fired, that you saw a cell phone in

the area of Mr. Reeves' feet. Do you remember that?

A. Yes.

Q. You didn't see anybody throw a cell phone, did
you?

A. I did not.

Q. As we discussed previously, Mr. Oulson was

seated right in front of you? .

A. Yes.
Q. Less than two feet away from you?
A, Yes.

Q. You mentioned in direct that there came a point
in time when Mr. Oulson stood_ué?

A. Yes.

Q. When Mr. Oulson stood up -- this would be you

back here, okay. Now I'm going to reverse it so that I

'can talk to you, okay? 1I'm going to be Mr. Oulson, and

2/22/2017 State of Florida v. Curtis J. Reeves .
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this would be his chair and you would be there. Okay?
A. Okay.
Q. Mr. Oulson never got in his chair, came up come

over and got into your aisle, did he, got in -- stood in
your aisle? |
A. No, but I thought he was.
You thought he was in your aisle?
No, I thought he was coming into our aisle.
He never got in --

I did not see him in our aisle.

o » 0 ¥

Okay. When Mr. Oulson stood up, he stood up

after your husband, Mr. Reeves, had contact with him,

right?

A. Yes.

AQ. Ahd whener. Oulson stoéd up, Mr. Reeﬁes had a
loaded pistol in his right front pocket; did he not?

A. Yes. He never took it out. |

Q. You mentioned on direct that after the shot was
fired you saw popcorn on the floox?

A. Yes.

Q. And that was the popcorn that was tossed at
Mr. Reeves; was it not?

A. Yes, sir.

Q. And hit Mr. Reeves?

A; I didn't actually see it. I saw it on the

2/22/2017 State of Florida v. Curtis J. Reeves
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video.
Q. Okay .
A. Because I wasn't looking at Mr. Oulson.
Q. I appreciate you telling me that, because I

want to separate what you saw on the video from your
memory, so thank you for that.

And my question to you was: Mr. Oulson never,
with a closed fist, hit your husband in the face, did he?

A. Not that I saw, but I wasn't looking.

Q. You were sitting right next to Mr. Reeves when
he began to pull the pistol out of his pocket; were you
not?

A. Yes, I was.

Q. Okay. You saw Mr. Reeves kind of lean over on

his left butt cheek, stretch his leg out? Did you see

that?
A. He leaned way back, yes, to the left.
Q. Uh-huh. Stretched out his right leg?
A. Yes, sir.
Q. And after you saw Mr. Reeves lean back and,

like you said, I would guess if I'm Mr. Reeves it would

be to his left, right --

A. Yes.
Q. -- and stretch out the right leg, right?
A. Yes.

2/22/2017  State of Florida v. Curtis J. Reeves
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Q. It was after that that the shot was fired,
right?
A. Yes.

Q. Okay. And sitting right next to your husband,

_Mr. Reeves, when he's drawing or pulling the pistol out

of his panés pocket, you also noticed that his right leg
had come back, right, so he can éit up?

A. No. I didn't see him draw the gun.

Q. All right. When he shot the fifearm, shot the
pistol tﬁat was in his right front pants pocket, he was

seated in his seat, right?

A. From the video I see that he was.

Q. All right. And he was leaning forward?

A. I think they showed that.

Q. bkay. And Mr. ﬁeeves, when hé drew the pistol

and pointed it at Mr. Oulson, he didn't bring it up to

his eyes and take a bead on him down the sight, did he?

A. I did not witness that.

Q. You didn't see this, either?

A. No, I didn't.

Q. Mr. Réeves shot, fired the pistel when it was

low, a little bit above his thigh, right?
a. I don't know.
Q. Okay. When Mr. Reeves fired the pistol,

Mr. Oulson was in his aisle; was he not?

2/22/2017 State of Florida v. Curtis J. Reeves
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After Mr. Oulson -- after I thought he was
coming over the seat, I don't know what happened. 1It's
just gone. I didn't know that day and I still don't
know.

Q. After your husband, Mr.‘Reeves, shot Mr.
Oulson, you turned to him, did you not, and say to him,

"That was no cause to shoot"?

A. No, §ir, I didn't.

Q. You did not tell Mr. Reeves that there was no
cause toAshoot that man? A

A. I certainly don't -- do not think I said that.
I know what I said, but I don't think I said that.

‘Q. Mr. Reeves then told you, "Don't say another
word"? |

A. He did not.

Q. Is that when you got up and moved three seats
away”?

A. When Mr. —; when the off-duty officer ﬁas

pulling the magazine to the gun, I believe Curtis told me

‘to move away, but I said something to him.

Page 756

A. I don't know.

Q; When Mr. Reeves shot Mr. Oulson, Mr. Oulson was
not leaning over, climbing over the seat at your husband,
was he?

A. I don't know, Mr. Martin.

2/22/2017  State of Florida v. Curtis J. Reeves
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To who?
To Curtis.
But we've just discussed that, right?

But what you said is not what I said.

© » © » ©

I know. That's why I said, we just discussed
that, right? I indicated to you, Did you say this and
you said no.

A. Okay. -

Q. Is that what we're talking about? You didn't

say anything more than that, did you?

A. Yes, I did. What you said is not what I said.
Q. Okay. |

aA. You didn't ask me what I said.

Q. No, but Mr. Michaels did.

AT Okay. |

Q. When you looked over and looked at your

‘husband, Mr. Reeves, after the shooting, did you see any
blood about his face?

A. I didn't see blood.

Q. Did you see -- do you know the difference
bétweeﬁ an abrasion and a lacefation, a cut and a scrape?

A. Okay, yes.

Q. Okay. Did you sees any cuté on his face?

A. No, but I didn't look. I looked from the side.

I never looked at his facé.

2/22/2017 State of Florida v. Curtis J. Reeves
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When Mr. Hamilton == when I asked to pick up
the phone because I thought it was Curtis's, Mr. Hamilton
said, "Don't touch anything," and I felt like that meént
Curtis, too. |

Q. Okay. But we're talking about what you
observed as far as injuries. Do you remember loqking at
the picture --

A. From the right side of his face.

Q. Well, actually, that's the left side of his

face that you pointed to.

A, Oh, right, but I'm saying that when I was
seated in the theater, I did not see the left side of his
face.

Q. When did you make the observatipps, then, that
&bu\tdld us abéut in the phoﬁograph about the left side

of his face?

A. Just looking at the photograph.

Q. Just now? -

A. Yes.

Q. Did you see anything about Mr. Reeves' face

that ﬁould suggest to you that a paramedic needed to come
and tend to your husband?

Mﬁ. MICHAELS: Objection. Speéulation.

How does she know what a péramedic needs to

come for? Some people have a bone hanging out and

\
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say they don't want to see a paramedic --
MR. MARTIN: Let's not be silly, Judge.
MR. MICHAELS: She said she didn't see his
face.
MR. MARTIN: No. She said she didn't see the
left side.
BY MR. MARTIN:
Q. Did you think it was necessary for you to call
the paramedics?
THE COURT: I'll overfule.
THE WITNESS: No. I did not think about that
at all.
BY MR. MARTIN:
Q. You mentioned to us about your fingers, you

know, they hurt?

A. Yes.

Q. You can't open a jar?

A. Once in a while I can.

Q. All right. Do you have a carrying concealed

weapon permit?

A. - Yes, I do.

Q. On January 13, 2014 did you have your firearm
with you? | | |

A. No, I did not.

Q. Did you have it in your car?

2/22/2017 State of Florida v. Curtis J. Reeves
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A. No.
Q.' Now, you and Mr. Reeves gq‘to Shooters World;
do you not?
A. Iuve been a few times.
Q. You've shot your pistol there?
A. Yes, I did.
Q. Now, prior to January 13, 2014, how many weeks

‘before that do you think you were at Shooters World?

A. I think he gave me a semi-automatic for
Christmas.

Q.. Uh-huh.

A. I think that I got to shoot it -- yeah, one
time at Shooters World.

Q. And you shot the pistol?

A;' Yes. LA
Q. And you:loaded>£hé'mégazine?.
A. Yes, sir.
Q. All right. And the magazine -- you're familiar
with the magazine in a pistol, right? N

A. Well, he told me what to do. He told me what
to do and I did it.

Q. All right. Did you use it, hold it on --
you'fe right—handea or left—handéd? 7

A. I'm right-handed.

Q. So did you hold the magazine in your left hand

2/22/2017 ‘State of Florida v. Curtis‘J. Reeves
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and then take the bullet and press it on the follower in

the magazine against the spring and push it down?

A. I don't know.

Q. But you loaded it, right?

A. I loaded it. It was very hard to load, to hold
the spring.

Q. What did you put, six or seven rounds in it?

A. I don't know.

Q. And as you continued to put rounds in that

magazine, it was harder and harder to push down against

that follower} wasn't it?

A.

¥ O ¥ O » O ¥ O

Q.

I think so.

But you were able to do it?
Yes.

.You fired the bistol?

Yes, I did.

You pulied the trigger?
Yes.

Numerous times?

‘Yes.

‘You were able to do that with your fingers, as

you've described?

A.

Yes.

MR. MARTIN: Your Honor, may I have a moment

with counsel?

- 2/22/2017
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THE COURT: You may.
MR. MARTIN: Thank you, Judée.
I have no further questions at this time.
THE COURT: Thank you.
Redirect?
REDIRECT EXAMINATION
BY MR. MICHAELS:

Q. The prosecutor asked you a little bit about the
policy of Cobb Theater. Did you know about their policy
to have a patron be able to sit where they wanted to
enjoy the movie?

A. No.

Q. Okay. Let me ask you aﬁout thé injuries that
the prosecutor talked to you about.

Did you know that.your husband fequested to see
a paramedic that day?

a. After the fact, yes.

Q. Did the police ever take you to take a look at
your husband's face to ask you, "Mrs. Reeves, do you see
anything visible or anything unusual about your husband's
facé in terms of injuries?"

A. No.

Q. ﬁow, did you ever imagine in your wildest
nightmare that somebody would behave like this in a movie

theater?

2/22/2017 State of Florida v. Curtis J. Reeves
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MR. MARTIN: Your Honor, I'm going to object.

MR. MICHAELS: I don't have anything else,

THE COURT: Anything else, Mr. Martin?

May this witness be excused?

MR. MICHAELS: We would ask that she remain on
sﬁbpoena for future recall.

ﬁR. MARTIN: And the State would also ask that
she remain under subpoena for the State's subpoena.

THE COURT: Ms. Reeves, you re allowed --
you're free to go today, but you will remain under
subpoena subject to recall at a later time. Okay?

(Witness excused.j

THE CdURT: Who's nekt?

MR. ESCOBAR: Your Honor, we have two witnesses
that we need to call today because one of them is
having some therapy tomorrow, so just two witnesses
today. We intended to call tomorrow, but we brought
them in today to get them done.

| THE COURT& Hopefully they aren't extremely
lengﬁhy.

Who.are you calliﬁg first?

MR. MICHAELS: Defense calls Robert Rerr.

THE BAILIFF:. Step this way, stand right here.

2/22/2017 State of Florida v. Curtis J. Reeves




